Committee Agenda

%’”’ﬂ% Webcast _
wes Meeting Epping Forest

District Council

Area Planning Subcommittee East
Wednesday, 14th September, 2011

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
Time: 7.30 pm

Democratic Services Mark Jenkins - The Office of the Chief Executive
Officer Email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel:

01992 564607
Members:

Councillors A Boyce (Chairman), Mrs S Jones (Vice-Chairman), K Avey, W Breare-Hall,
Mrs D Collins, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, P Keska, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan,

S Packford, J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and
J M Whitehouse

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE.

WEBCASTING NOTICE

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed.

You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it.

Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber
public gallery area

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic
Services Officer on 01992 564249.




Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 14 September 2011

1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate
their microphones before speaking.

2. The Chairman will read the following announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be
made available for those that request it.

If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will
become part of the broadcast.

This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this
you should move to the upper public gallery”

2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 8)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.
3. MINUTES (Pages 9 - 24)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee, held on 17 August
2011 (attached).

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda.
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6)
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks' notice of non-urgent
items is required.

7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL (Pages 25 - 128)

(Director of Planning and Economic Development) To consider planning applications
as set out in the attached schedule

Background Papers:

(i) Applications for determination — applications listed on the schedule, letters of

2



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 14 September 2011

representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the
schedule.

(i) Enforcement of Planning Control — the reports of officers inspecting the properties
listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the
enforcement of planning control.

8. DELEGATED DECISIONS

(Director of Planning & Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications
determined by the Head of Planning & Economic Development under delegated
powers since the last meeting of the Sub-Committee could be inspected in the
Members’ Room or on the Planning & Economic Development Information Desk at the
Civic Offices in Epping.

9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

Exclusion

To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information
Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24
hours prior to the meeting.

Confidential Items Commencement
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require:

(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed
to exclude the public and press.

3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for
report rather than decision.

Background Papers

Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report
which in the Proper Officer's opinion:




Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 14 September 2011

(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.



Agenda ltem 2

Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee.

Can | speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda.
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.

Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then
withdraw.

Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving.

What can | say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members.

If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the
application in your absence.

Can | give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to
the Planning Officer dealing with your application.

How are the applications considered?

The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’
presentations.

The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her

agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the

Page 5



Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are
required to give their reasons for doing so.

The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District
Development Control Committee.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet “Your Choice, Your Voice’

Page 6



Area Planning Subcommittee East 2011-12
Members of the Committee:

Clir Boyce

Clir Breare-
Hall

Clir Grigg

ClIr Jacobs

Clir Jones

Clir Keska

\'
R\

Clir Philip

CliIr Rolfe

Clir Stallan

Clir Waller

Clir
Whitbread

Clir Janet
Whitehouse

Clir Jon
Whitehouse

Page 7




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Agenda ltem 3

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee:  Area Planning Subcommittee East Date: 17 August 2011

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Time: 7.30 -9.20 pm
High Street, Epping

Members Mrs S Jones (Vice-Chairman), KAvey, W Breare-Hall, Mrs D Collins,
Present: Mrs A Grigg, D Jacobs, P Keska, Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, B Rolfe,
D Stallan, G Waller, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

Other
Councillors:

Apologies: A Boyce, P Gode and J Philip

Officers G Courtney (Planning Officer), S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer)
Present: and G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer)

26. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION

The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the
webcasting of its meetings.

27. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

28. MINUTES

Resolved:

(1) That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2011 be taken as read and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

29. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

The Chairman requested nominations from the Sub-Committee for the role of Vice-
Chairman.

Resolved:

(1 That Councillor R Morgan be elected Vice-Chairman for the duration of the
meeting.

Page 9 1



Area Planning Subcommittee East 17 August 2011

30.

31.

32.

33.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Pursuant to the Council’'s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs A Grigg
and D Stallan declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda by
virtue of being a member of North Weald Bassett Parish Council. The Councillors
had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the
meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon:

. EPF/1073/11 17 Forest Grove, Woodside, Thornwood;
° EPF/1136/11 4 Vicarage Lane, North Weald Bassett; and
. EPF/1236/11 1 High Road, North Weald Bassett.

(b) Pursuant to the Council’'s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Whitbread
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of being
acquainted with the Applicant. The Councillor had determined that his interest was
prejudicial and would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and
voting thereon:

. EPF/1236/11 1 High Road, North Weald Bassett.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
Resolved:

(1) That the planning applications numbered 1 — 10 be determined as set out in
the schedule attached to these minutes.

DELEGATED DECISIONS
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the

Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices.

CHAIRMAN

Page 10 2



Minute ltem 32

Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/2252/10
SITE ADDRESS: Badgers
Fyfield Road
Moreton
Ongar
Essex
CMS5 OHN
PARISH: Ongar
WARD: Shelley
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Change of use of existing steel framed barn to offices B1(a)
with associated external alterations and revocation of
associated S52 Legal Agreement restricting use.
DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to S106)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=522643

CONDITIONS

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

No development shall have taken place until details of the types and colours of the
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details.

If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved
plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes
severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development,
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the
same place.

Prior to first occupation of the units hereby approved, all temporary portacabin
structures shall be removed from site.

Subsequent to first occupation, there shall be no external storage on site at any time
whatsoever.

Page 31



10.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans and
particulars, in particular retaining the steel frame as indicated, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of
Part 41, Classes A or B shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of
the Local Planning Authority.

The premises shall be used solely for B1(a) Office use. and for no other purpose
(including any other purpose in Class B of the Schedule to the Town & Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended), or in any provision equivalent to
that Class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the recommendations
set out in the Phase 1 Habitat Survey carried out by Southern Ecological Solutions
and issued on 23rd December 2010 unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Prior to the commencement of the development the details of the number, location
and design of cycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The approved facility shall be secure, convenient and
covered and provided prior to first occupation and retained in accordance with the
approved details.

And subject to the applicant first entering into a legal agreement under section 106 (within
12 months of this Committees decision) to restrict occupation of the dwelling known as
Badgers, to either the owner of the adjacent office units or a person employed in one of the

office units.

PRggel 2



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No:

EPF/0940/11

SITE ADDRESS:

3 Crown Close
Sheering
Harlow

Essex

CM22 7ND

PARISH:

Sheering

WARD:

Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Alteration of existing bungalow to form 2 No. two storey semi-
detached cottages plus construction of a single two storey
detached cottage (Revised application)

DECISION:

Withdrawn by Applicant

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov. uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=527846

Page %3




Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/0944/11
SITE ADDRESS: Hales Farm
Nether Street
Abbess Roding
Essex
PARISH: The Rodings - Abbess, Beauchamp and Berners
WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Demolition of farm buildings and erection of a single detached
dwelling.
DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=527868

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1. The proposal constitutes inappropriate development that is both harmful to the
purposes of including land within the Green Belt and causes physical harm to the
openness and character of the Green Belt. There are insufficient very special
circumstances that clearly outweigh this, and other identified, harm, and therefore
the development is contrary to PPG2 and policy GB2A, DBE1 and DBE4 of the
adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

2. The proposed development, due to the removal of the historic curtilage listed
buildings and the scale and overall size of the proposed new dwelling, would be
detrimental to the historic setting of the adjacent Grade Il listed building, contrary to
PPS5 and policies HC11, HC12 and LL1 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

3. Insufficient information has been provided with regards to the use of, and external
works proposed to be undertaken to, the curtilage listed buildings that would be
retained, and with regards to the proposed commercial livery use of the stable
building. Given this lack of information the proposed development may be
detrimental to the appearance and historic importance of the curtilage listed
buildings, the setting of the adjacent Grade I listed building, and the character of the
Green Belt. As such the development may be contrary to PPG2, PPS5, and policies
GB2A, GB8A, HC10, HC12 and HC13 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

4. The proposed new dwelling, due to its scale, bulk, massing, orientation, siting and
design, is over-dominant, visually incongruous and harmful to the character and
amenity of the rural area, contrary to policies GB7A, DBE1, DBE4, LL2 and LL11 of
the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

PRggel 8




Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/0945/11
SITE ADDRESS: Hales Farm
Nether Street
Abbess Roding
Essex
PARISH: The Rodings - Abbess, Beauchamp and Berners
WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Grade Il listed building application for the demolition of farm
buildings.
DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=527869

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1. The proposed development results in the demolition of curtilage listed buildings and
no very exceptional circumstances have been provided to show that they cannot be
retained and returned to an appropriate use. Their loss, in addition, would be
detrimental to the historic setting of the adjacent Grade Il listed building, contrary to
PPS5 and policies HC11 and HC12 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

2. Insufficient information has been provided with regards to the use of, and internal
and external works proposed to be undertaken to, the curtilage listed buildings that
would be retained. Given this lack of information the proposed development may be
detrimental to the appearance and historic importance of the curtilage listed
buildings and the setting of the adjacent Grade Il listed building, contrary to PPS5
and policies HC10, HC12 and HC13 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

Page 75




Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1008/11

SITE ADDRESS:

Millrite Engineering

151 - 153 London Road
Stanford Rivers

Ongar

Essex

CM5

PARISH:

Stanford Rivers

WARD:

Passingford

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Redevelopment of site to provide 4 detached chalet
bungalows and garages.

DECISION:

Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov. uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=528155

This item was deferred to allow Members to see a copy of the viability appraisal.

PRggel 8




Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1052/11
SITE ADDRESS: Gypsey Mead Works
Ongar Road
Fyfield
Ongar
Essex
CM5 ORB
PARISH: Fyfield
WARD: Moreton and Fyfield
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Rebuilding of existing warehouse with some additional first
floor office space.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=528274

CONDITIONS

1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2. The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: 1191/02A, 1191/03A, 1191/05B, 1191/07B, 1191/08B

3. No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with such approved details.

4. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed first floor
window openings in the western flank elevation shall be entirely fitted with fixed
frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the windows
are installed and the southernmost western first floor window shall be fitted with
obscured glass, and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

5. The premises shall be used solely for B8 with ancillary office space and for no other
purpose (including any other purpose in Class B of the Schedule to the Town &
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended), or in any provision
equivalent to that Class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that
Order.

6. No deliveries shall be made to or from the site outside the hours of 08:00 to 18:00

on Monday to Friday, 08:00 to 13:00 on Saturdays, and not at all on Sundays and
Bank/Public Holidays.

Page 97




10.

11.

There shall be no outdoor working on the site outside the hours of 08:00 to 18:00 on
Monday to Saturday and not at all on Sundays and Bank/Public Holidays.

The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be retained free of obstruction
for the parking of staff and visitors vehicles.

No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters,
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11",
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition
that follows]

Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out.
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that
follows]

Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

Page 18



12.

13.

14.

15.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that
follows]

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report
(referred to in PPS23 as a Validation Report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of
the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary
monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes
relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall
be implemented.

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above
condition.

All  construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

No outdoor storage shall take place on the site.

Page 19



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/1073/11
SITE ADDRESS: 17 Forest Grove

Woodside

Thornwood

Epping

Essex

CM16 6NS
PARISH: North Weald Bassett
WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Proposed first floor rear extension and internal alterations.
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528345

CONDITIONS
1. The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.
2. Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall

match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Page 2@




Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1136/11

SITE ADDRESS:

4 Vicarage Lane
North Weald Bassett
Epping

Essex

CM16 6ET

PARISH:

North Weald Bassett

WARD:

North Weald Bassett

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Single storey rear and side extensions and loft conversion.

DECISION:

Deferred

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528551

This item was deferred to allow a Member site visit to be carried out on a Saturday.

Page 23




Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1164/11

SITE ADDRESS:

OS 3528

Land at North Farm
Mount Road
Theydon Mount
Epping

Essex

CM16 7QA

PARISH:

Theydon Mount

WARD:

Passingford

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Change of use of pasture land to horse keeping, erection of

post and wire boundary fencing. Erection of private stables
with ancillary hardstanding , accessed from existing road
servicing North Farm and neighbouring properties. (Revised
application)

DECISION:

Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH _TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=528662

Members considered the above development unacceptable due to the large scale of the proposed
stable block to accommodate two horses, and small size of the application site that fails to meet
with the guidance set by the British Horse Society. It was considered that this proposal is
detrimental to the character and setting of the Registered Parkland, the Grade | listed building (Hill
Hall), the Green Belt, and would be unsustainable as all trips would be generated by private motor
vehicles, including the delivery of feed.

REASONS FOR REFUSAL

1.

The proposed development, due to the size and location of the stable building,
would be detrimental to the Registered Parkland and the setting of the Grade | listed
building, contrary to policies HC3 and HC12 of the adopted Local Plan and
Alterations.

The proposed stable building, due to its size in relation to the application site, fails to
comply with policies GB2A, RST4 and RST5 of the adopted Local Plan and
Alterations.

The proposed development is located within an unsustainable location where there
would be a reliance on private motor vehicles, and the inadequate size of the site
would result in increased vehicle movements related to feed delivery. As such the
proposal is contrary to policies CP3, CP5 and ST4 of the adopted Local Plan and
Alterations.

Page 22




Report Item No: 10

APPLICATION No: EPF/1236/11
SITE ADDRESS: 1 High Road
North Weald Bassett
Epping
Essex
CM16 6HN
PARISH: North Weald Bassett
WARD: North Weald Bassett
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | New end of terrace dwelling house. (Revised Application)
DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528943

CONDITIONS

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: NW.01.01, NW.01.02A and NW.01.04

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of
Part 1, Class A, B, C and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission
of the Local Planning Authority.

An assessment of flood risk, focussing on surface water drainage, shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement
of the development. The assessment shall demonstrate compliance with the
principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). The development shall be
carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved
plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes
severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development,
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or

Page 28



becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the
same place.

Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and
shall be erected before the occupation of the dwelling hereby approved and
maintained in the agreed positions.

Page 26



Agenda ltem 7

AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’
Date 14 September 2011

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES

ITEM | REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER PAGE
RECOMMENDATION

1 EPF/1596/11 Birch Hall Grant Permission 27
$ﬁ§§(‘$ Row (With Conditions)
Epping

2 EPF/0899/11 2 Little Colemans Grant Permission 31
Romford Road (With Conditions)
Stanford Rivers
Ongar

3 EPF/1008/11 Millrite Engineering Grant Permission 35
151 - 153 London Road .
Stanford Rivers (Subject to S106)
Ongar

4 EPF/1136/11 4 Vicarage Lane Grant Permission 58
Eggﬂ gvea'd Bassett (With Conditions)

5 EPF/1159/11 Marden Ash House Refuse Permission 62
Stanford Rivers Road
Ongar

6 EPF/1244/11 Quality Hotel (The Bell Hotel) Grant Permission 68
E'F?pr;n'zwd (with Conditions)

7 EPF/1251/11 Chestnuts Grant Permission 74
m:y%ﬁ\egois (With Conditions)
Epping

8 EPF/1254/11 156-158 High Street Refuse Permission 78
Ongar

9 EPF/1287/11 Melonese Grant Permission 83
\é\gu‘;‘gl fzz'; Farm (With Conditions)
High Laver
Ongar

Page 25



10 EPF/1381/11 Bantham And Ongar Bowls Club Grant Permission 88
Weald Bridge Road : .
North Weal?:l Bassett (With Conditions)
Epping

11 EPF/1423/11 Darlingtons Grant Permission 93
Coppice Row .
Th;? don Bois (Subject to Legal

Agreement)

12 EPF/1437/11 40 Forest Drive Grant Permission 106
Theydon Bois (With Conditions)

13 EPF/1456/11 Wintry Park Service Station Grant Permission 111
E;;Egmw“d Road (Subject to S106)

14 EPF/1508/11 14 Harrison Drive Grant Permission 122
North Weald

(With Conditions)

Page 26




Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1596/11
SITE ADDRESS: Birch Hall
Coppice Row
Theydon Bois
Epping
Essex
PARISH: Theydon Bois
WARD: Theydon Bois
APPLICANT: Estate Manager

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | TPO/EPF/03/89 (W1)

T1 - Oak - Fell and grind stump

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=530234

CONDITIONS

1

The work authorised by this consent shall be carried out under the direct supervision
of the Local Planning Authority, who shall receive in writing, 5 working days notice of
such works.

All work authorised by this consent shall be undertaken in a manner consistent with
British Standard 3998 (2010) (or with any similar replacement Standard).

The works hereby authorised shall not be undertaken after a period of three years
from the date of this consent has expired.

A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years from the
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

This application is before committee since all applications to fell preserved trees are outside the
scope of delegated powers.

Description of Proposal:

T1. Oak - Fell to ground level and grind stump.

Page 27




Description of Site:

This mature Oak stands 16 metres tall and about 4 metres from the garage lodge for the mansion
property. It forms part of a mature, oak dominated collection of large trees, lining the drive and
surrounding the house. Two other Oak specimens stand close by. The subject tree is partially
screened by oaks and a Beech standing directly on the front boundary when viewed from the main
road. The character of the area is that of forest edge, with dense, tall roadside hedgerows
screening views into this and neighbouring large properties on Coppice Row.

Relevant History:

There are records in December 2009 of TRE/EPF/0649/09 which allowed the felling of an ailing
oak at the edge of the inner courtyard drive and then in November 2010 permission to fell a
declining beech under TRE/EPF/2440/10.

Relevant Policies:

LL9 Felling of preserved trees.

Summary of Representations:

1 neighbour was consulted and responded with a comment of no objection.

THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL raises no objection providing the Council Tree Officer is
satisfied the works are necessary.

Issues and Considerations:

Issues

The application is made on the basis that the tree is structurally weakened. It is said to have
advanced decay within its stem and root buttresses with visible staining and fluxing variously on
the lower trunk.

The issue, therefore, is whether or not the removal of this tree is justified and necessary due to the
threat it presents to the nearby building.

Considerations

i) Tree condition and life expectancy.

From a ground level visual inspection, it is accepted that the tree appears to be suffering from
extensive root rot and stem disease. Several large buttresses sound hollow and one disintegrates
on contact with missing bark around the stem base. Bleeding and discoloured bark fissures and
areas of dieback in the upper crown are clearly visible but the most notable crown observation is
the severity of a previous harsh crown reduction leaving stubby limbs and the tree’s columnar
habit.

It is predicted that this tree has a safe future lifespan of less than 5 years.
i) Amenity value
The tree has minimal public visibility, being obscured by a screen of tall boundary trees at the gate

and along the roadside. The tree contributes to the mature, predominantly oak group, comprising
two other mature specimens and a large Eucalyptus.

Page 28



The proposed removal will have little impact on the property’s public appearance with so many
frontage trees and younger specimens in the vicinity, retaining the woodland character of the front
drive area.

iii) Replacement tree

There is ample space for new planting of many varied species in this area. Following previous tree
removals, replacements have been willingly planted and are now established.

Conclusion:

The tree is in a state of structural decline and can reasonably be seen to present an increasing risk
to nearby structures in the near future. This threat outweighs the loss of amenity its removal will
cause. It is, therefore recommended to grant permission to this application on the grounds that the
condition of the tree justifies its removal. The proposal therefore accords with Local Plan
Landscape Policy LL9.

It is recommended that, in the event of members granting permission to fell this tree, a condition
be attached to the decision notice requiring the replanting of an agreed suitable replacement at an
agreed location on the site.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Robin Hellier
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564546

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 29



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

Birch Hall
(site of)

The material contained in this plot has been

Forest

El Sub Sta

Gate
Cottage

il

Hunters
Birch Lodge

—
Hall

Swimming Pool \

reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Iltem 1
Number:
Application Number: | EPF/1596/11
Site Name: Birch Hall, Coppice Row
Theydon Bois,
Scale of Plot: 1/1250
Page 30




Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/0899/11

SITE ADDRESS: 2 Little Colemans
Romford Road
Stanford Rivers

Ongar

Essex

CM5 9PQ
PARISH: Stanford Rivers
WARD: Passingford
APPLICANT: Mr Steve Hall

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Retrospective planning consent for the following: Conversion
of the existing barn into an indoor heated swimming pool.
Linking of the barn to the main house with a single storey
building providing an indoor children’s play area and indoor
access to the pool . Glazed conservatory and feature patio to
the front of the barn. Obscure glazed conservatory to the rear
of the barn.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=527701

CONDITIONS

1 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further
amending or re-enacting that order) the house, as enlarged by the development
hereby approved, shall not be enlarged or extended in any way and no outbuildings
shall be erected within the curtilage of the house as defined by the broken red line
on drawing no 2LX-P-02 revision A.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Description of Proposal:

This application seeks retrospective planning permission for the conversion of an existing barn to
an indoor heated swimming pool, the linking of the barn to the main house by single storey
extension and the addition of conservatories to either end of the barn.

Page 31




Description of Site:

The application site comprises a detached dwelling, outbuildings and a large side garden area.
The larger of the two outbuildings (referred to on plan as ‘Barn 1’) has been attached to the
dwelling by an ‘L’ shaped single storey link extension.

Relevant History:

EPF/0150/79. Erection of a single storey rear extension, alterations to form two front bays
and formation of a vehicular access. Approved 14/05/1979.

EPF/0019/83. Side extension. Approved 07/02/1983.

EPF/0431/93. Improvements to access. Approved 22/06/1993.

Policies Applied:

Local Plan

CP2 - Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE 2, 9 - Amenity

DBE 10 — Design

GB2A — Development in the Green Belt

Summary of Representations:

Notification of this application was sent to Stanford Rivers Parish Council and to 1 neighbouring
property.

The following representations have been received to date:

STANFORD RIVERS PARISH COUNCIL: Objection: The Parish Council are mindful other than
the dwelling one barn was original there appears to be two now, need to check records, if this is
so, the Parish Council objects to the application — overdevelopment in the Green Belt, should the
Council be mindful to approve this application, it should be worded on the approval that this is the
max. development of the site, as we understand the existing property has been enlarged
previously.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues to be considered are the impacts of the proposed development on neighbouring
amenities, on the character and appearance of the area and on the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Notwithstanding the merits of the development, Members are advised that aerial photographs of
the site taken in November 2006 demonstrate the development as a whole was complete at that
time. Since the District Council was not aware of the breach of planning control until this
application was made no enforcement action has been taken against it and it is now too late to do
so. As a consequence, the applicant would be entitled to a Lawful Development Certificate for the
development had he applied for one. However, since the applicant has made a planning
application instead the District Council must decide it on its merits.

Neighbouring Amenity

The location of the site and the extensions undertaken are such that there has been no adverse
impact upon the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings.

Page 32



Character and Appearance

The additions to the dwelling have limited visibility from outside the application site. The link
addition is subservient to the main dwelling and positioned such that the integrity of the main
house is retained. Furthermore, the materials used are such that the link extension is in keeping
with the main dwelling.

Impact on the Metropolitan Green Belt,

The site is located within the Green Belt, where Policy GB2A of the Local Plan Alterations states
that extensions to existing buildings within the Green Belt may be acceptable where it is a limited
extension to an existing dwelling. The barns themselves are long established structures within the
curtilage of this dwelling, therefore the impact of the development on the Green Belt should be
considered in terms of the impact caused by the link extensions and conservatory style additions
to ‘Barn 1°.

The unauthorised additions cover a volume of approximately 77.6 cubic metres. Combined with
previous authorised additions to the dwelling, this would amount to a 78% increase in volume
above that of the original dwelling (excluding the barns from the calculation). The table below sets
out the amount of volume created by additions to the dwelling (excluding the barns):

Volume (m?®) | Volume increase (m?) | Percentage increase
Original Dwelling 403 - -
As extended — EPF/0019/81 641 238 59%
With unauthorised extensions 718.5 77.5 78%

Whilst 78% is a substantial increase in the size of the property it is considered to be, just about,
within the limit which may be considered as a limited addition, as required by Policy GB2A and
would, therefore be appropriate development within the Green Belt. However, due to the size of
the extension, future extensions or new outbuildings would be likely to be considered
disproportionate within the Green Belt. Permitted development rights exist within the site, which
would allow for the erection of further substantial outbuildings and for the addition of a rear
extension to the dwelling. It is considered both necessary and reasonable that, if this application is
permitted, those rights be removed to prevent future harm to the Green Belt. This course of action
has been discussed with the Applicant, who is in agreement.

Conclusion:

In light of the above appraisal, it is considered, on balance, that the extensions do not have a
detrimental impact upon the open character of the Metropolitan Green Belt, although it is
necessary to remove permitted development rights to control any future additions. Subject to the
imposition of such a planning condition, it is considered that the retention of the extensions is
acceptable. It is, therefore, recommended that planning permission be granted.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Mrs Katie Smith
Direct Line Telephone Number: (01992) 564109

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 33




Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Iltem 2
Number:
Application Number: | EPF/0899/11

Site Name: 2 Little Colemans, Romford Road
Stanford Rivers, Ongar, CM5 9PQ
Scale of Plot: 1/5000

Page 34




Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1008/11

SITE ADDRESS:

Millrite Engineering

151 - 153 London Road
Stanford Rivers

Ongar

Essex

CM5

PARISH:

Stanford Rivers

WARD:

Passingford

APPLICANT:

Hart and Long

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Redevelopment of site to provide 4 detached chalet
bungalows and garages.

RECOMMENDED DECISION:

Grant Permission (Subject to S106)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528155

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: 1513.01A, 1513.02A, 1513.03A, 1513.04, 1513.05,
1513.06, 1513.07A, 1513.08 and 1513.09

3 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters,
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11",
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition

that follows]

Page 35




Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out.
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that
follows]

Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that
follows]

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report
(referred to in PPS23 as a Validation Report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of
the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary
monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes
relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall
be implemented.

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above
condition.

Page 36



10

11

12

13

No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to
any variation.

All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the
completion of the development hereby approved.

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a
timetable for its implementation. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand,
and in writing.

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant
protection and aftercare. It must also include details of the supervision of the
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority.

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to
any variation.

No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with such approved details.

Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and
maintained in the agreed positions.

Page 37



14 The development shall not be commenced until details of the means to prevent the
discharge of surface water from the site onto the highway have been submitted to an
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved details.

15 Notwithstanding the details shown on drawing number 1513.01A and the
requirements of condition 2 of this planning permission, the access way serving the
development shall be a minimum width of 5.5m for a distance of 6m from the
carriageway of the adjacent highway.

16 No gates shall be erected at the vehicular access to the site from the highway.

17 The following windows shall be obscure glazed in fixed (non-openable) frames to a
minimum height of 1.7m as measured from the finished floor level of the rooms to
which they serve and be retained as such thereafter.

1) The dormer windows in the rear (east) elevation of the house at Plot 1, as
indicated on drawing number 1513.03A;

2) The dormer windows in the side (north west) elevation of the house at Plot 3, as
indicated on drawing number 1513.07A;

18 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of
Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B and E shall be undertaken without the prior written
permission of the Local Planning Authority.

and subject to the completion, within 6 months, of an agreement under S106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 requiring the developer to contribute £21,000 towards the
provision of off-site affordable housing within the District.

This application was deferred from the last meeting of this Sub-Committee in order that Members
could be given an opportunity to consider the viability assessments referred to in the Officers
report. The assessments were circulated by email to all Members of the Sub-Committee on 23
August 2011 and are appended to the report below.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation conflicts with a previous
resolution of a Committee (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (i) of the Council’s Delegated
Functions).

Description of Proposal:

It is proposed to redevelop land comprising a disused engineering works and detached house
together with a large grassed area to provide 4 two-storey detached houses.

The houses would comprise 2 types, both with an L shaped footprint, situated on the developed
north-eastern part of the site and be accessed by the existing access point. They would take the
form of chalet-bungalows with the first floor contained entirely within the roof space. Each house
would have 3 bedrooms and contain an integral double garage with two further parking spaces on
a drive in front of the garage. Private gardens for 3 of the houses would be provided on the
existing open part of the site, while the garden for one house would be in the southern corner.

Page 38



The houses would be of traditional design with tall gabled roofs containing modest dormer
windows. Materials and landscaping are not finalised. The design and access statement specifies
external materials as weatherboarding above a brick plinth with a tiled roof. It identifies the main
opportunities for landscaping as the gardens and states the existing high mature hedgerow
adjacent to London Road would be retained.

The houses would have maximum ridge heights of 7.3m. The total volume of all the proposed
buildings would be some 2800m?® while their ground area would be 570m?.

Description of Site:

The application site is located on the southeast side of London Road (the A113), Stanford Rivers,
between the Woodman PH and former White Bear PH. It is within the Metropolitan Green Belt but
is not within a conservation area.

The White Bear PH has been converted to a number of dwellings: White Bear House and White
Bear Mews. The Woodman PH is set adjacent to London Road while White Bear House and
Mews are situated off an access road southeast of London Road at significantly lower level such
that they are not clearly visible from the main road. Those buildings are Grade Il listed.

The site itself is a disused engineering works and detached house accessed off the same road
that provides access to White Bear House and Mews. It is an irregular shaped site, approximately
rectangular in shape. It is largely screened from view of London Road by a hedgerow on the
highway verge, a leylandii hedge adjacent to the access to the site and by its level being
significantly lower than that of the carriageway.

The buildings on site are a mix of single and two-storey structures with a maximum ridge height of
7.2m situated on the north-eastern part of the site that enclose a concrete surfaced yard area.
They are substantial and permanent structures that have a total volume of some 2300m® covering
a ground area of 545m>.

The south-western half of the site is an open grassed area with some trees. The site levels drop
approximately 2m from northwest to southeast.

The south-eastern boundary of the site is enclosed by close board fencing, beyond which is an
open field that falls away from the site. Views to the east beyond the adjacent field are of open
countryside. The field is used for a mix of agricultural and recreational purposes, the recreational
activity being clay pigeon shooting.

The north-western site boundary is enclosed by close board fencing with hedgerow on highway
land between the site boundary and London Road.

Relevant History:

EPF/0713/09 Retaining store/forge to front and converting to two bedroom single storey unit,
retaining spray and bending building and conversion to a two bedroom bungalow,
retaining two, two storey workshops and office building and converting to a four
bedroom house. Approved following the completion of a S.106 agreement requiring
the payment of a contribution of £100,000 to the provision of social housing upon
completion of the development. (Development not commenced)

EPF/2399/09 Replacement of existing 2 storey dwelling and redevelopment of remainder of site
to provide 3 additional 2 storey dwellings and associated garaging and amenity
space (giving a total of 4 new 5/6 bedroom houses). Refused on Green Belt
grounds. Subsequent appeal dismissed.

Page 39



EPF/2400/09 Replacement of existing 2 storey dwelling and redevelopment of remainder of site
to provide 3 additional 2 storey dwellings and associated garaging and amenity
space (Alternative scheme also giving a total of 4 new 5/6 bedroom houses).
Refused on Green Belt grounds. Subsequent appeal dismissed.

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations

CP2 Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
CP3-5 and ST1 Sustainable development policies

GB2A Development in the Green Belt

GB7A Conspicuous Development

GB15A Replacement Dwellings

HC12 Development Affecting the Setting of Listed Buildings
H2A Previously Developed Land

H3A Housing Density

H4A Dwelling Mix

H5A-7A Policy relating to the provision for affordable housing
E4A Protection of Employment Sites

E4B Alternative Uses for Employment Sites

DBE1, 2, 4, 6, 8 & -9 Policy relating to design and impact of development on amenity
LL10 Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention

LL11 Landscaping Schemes

ST4 Road Safety

ST6 Vehicle Parking

Summary of Representations:

The occupants of 4 neighbouring properties were consulted and a site notice was displayed but no
response was received.

STANFORD RIVERS PARISH COUNCIL: No Objection. Reduced scheme acceptable but still
contrary to Green Belt Policy but more acceptable than industrial development on this exposed
site.

Issues and Considerations:

The District Council accepted the principle of the loss of this site for employment purposes and
accepted the sustainability of the location for residential development when it granted planning
permission for the conversion of the existing buildings to provide a total of four dwellings including
the existing house, Ref EPF/0713/09.

In dismissing the appeals against the refusal of application EPF/2399/09 and EPF/2400/09 the
Planning Inspector found the improvement of the site’s appearance by the proposals to be an
important consideration. He found the scheme that restricted the built form to the area covered by
the existing buildings far preferable to the alternative proposal. However, he found the bulkiness
of the buildings proposed and the urban character of the schemes layout would cause significant
harm to the Green Belt, countryside and setting of neighbouring listed buildings. The inspector
therefore concluded that, on balance, the improvement in the site’s appearance that would be
achieved by that scheme would not amount to the very special circumstance necessary to justify
the proposal.

Page 40



The main issues to consider when assessing the planning merits of this proposal are therefore
whether the development is acceptable in Green Belt terms and its effect on the setting of the
adjacent listed buildings. It is also necessary to consider whether the site could fulfil an identified
community need.

Appropriateness in the Green Bell, visual impact and consequence for setting of listed buildings:

The development is not appropriate in the Green Belt and therefore by definition harmful. It would
result in an increase in built volume of some 500m°®, 22% of that existing, which would be achieved
on a 25m? (5%) greater ground area. Regardless of its visual impact, the development can only
be allowed where very special circumstances that outweigh the harm caused by its
inappropriateness exist.

When seen from London Road the upper parts of the roofs of the new houses would be apparent.
However, the ridge heights of the houses would be similar to the maximum height of the existing
development, their roof form would be less bulky and the built form of the proposal would be
restricted to the presently developed part of the site therefore the overall appearance of bulk would
not be much greater than the existing development.

When seen from the southeast, however, due to the drop in land levels beyond the site the
development would appear prominent when seen from the open countryside. That impact would
be confined to the previously developed part of the site and significantly mitigated by the higher
level of the highway beyond the site.

The visual impact of the proposal would be significantly less than that of the previously refused
proposals since the provision of the first floor accommodation in the roof space has achieved a
reduction in ridge height of some 2.4m and a greatly reduced eaves level.

The design of the new development would represent a considerable improvement over the
appearance of the existing buildings and by restricting the built area to the previously developed
part of the site it accords with the updated guidance for housing development set out in PPS3.
The restriction of the built up area to that already developed serves to protect a key part of the
established character of the immediate locality. This is reinforced by the relatively low ridge and
very low eaves heights of the proposed houses. The design and siting of the development would
safeguard the setting of the adjacent listed buildings especially the Woodman PH which is set
away from neighbouring buildings in an open setting.

Case for Very Special Circumstances:

The existing development has a very poor appearance that is not only harmful to the visual
amenities of the Green Belt but is harmful to the setting of adjacent listed buildings, especially
White Bear Mews. The applicants have designed the proposal in the light of the appeal decisions
on applications EPF/2399/09 and EPF/2400/09. They draw attention to the siting and design of
the proposal and the reduced bulk of the houses compared to those previously proposed. They
also draw attention to the improvement that would be achieved for the setting of the neighbouring
listed buildings and broadly similar appearance of bulk to the existing development.

The opportunity to finish the buildings in soft materials together with their simple roof design which
generally places dormer windows where they would not readily be visible from London Road or
open land to the southeast are important elements of the proposal’s design. Those design
features would give the impression of traditional rural buildings when seen from those vantage
points, although that would clearly not be the case when seen from within the site when the
domestic character of the buildings would be plainly visible.

Page 41



The Planning Inspector gave considerable weight to the improvement to the appearance of the site
one of the previous schemes would have achieved and only on balance found the improvement
did not amount to very special circumstances. By careful design and sensitive siting the current
proposal would achieve a very significant improvement in the appearance of the site when seen
from all vantage points. It would also achieve a considerable improvement in the relationship of
the built form on the site to the neighbouring listed buildings, thereby improving their setting.

The combination of achieving such an improvement in the appearance of the site and setting of
listed buildings is a sufficiently unique set of circumstances that, in this particular case, just amount
to very special circumstances.

Meeting community need:

The principle of the loss of this site for employment purposes has been accepted in giving consent
for the conversion of the existing buildings to residential purposes under planning permission
EPF/0713/09. Where proposed development would result in a loss of an employment site Local
Plan and Alteration policy E4B requires it be demonstrated that there is no identified community
need that can be met on site. Despite carrying out consultation exercises on the current and 3
previous proposals no such community need has been identified. In those circumstances, the
supporting text for the policy (paragraph 10.55a) requires consideration be given to whether the
site or proposal can address the general community need for affordable housing. Given the
remoteness of the site it has previously been accepted that it is not suitable for making on-site
provision towards affordable housing. Previous schemes, including that approved under planning
permission EPF/0713/09 dealt with the matter by offering a financial contribution towards off-site
provision of affordable housing. The sum previously accepted was £100,000, but that was not
justified by any independent assessment of the viability of the approved conversion to residential.
The approved scheme has subsequently proved unviable for a number of reasons and will not be
implemented.

Officers have made it clear to the current applicant that this proposal would need to consider
making a financial contribution to off-site provision of affordable housing in order to address the
requirements of policy E4B. Officers have also insisted on an independent assessment of the
viability of the proposal in order to establish what a justifiable level of contribution could be.
Accordingly, Kemsley LLP, was appointed to carry out that assessment and report jointly to the
Council and the applicant.

Kemsley LLP has reported their findings. On the basis that an acceptable profit on total
development costs for a redevelopment would be between 15 and 20%, the report finds the
proposal would not be viable if a contribution of £100,000 were payable since the profit that could
be expected would be just under 12%. A fair level of contribution that would allow an acceptable
profit to be made is reported to be £28,000, limiting the expected return to 15.9%.

Kemsley LLP also reports that since one of the four proposed houses would replace an existing
house on the site, only 3 additional houses would in fact be provided on the site. On that basis the
report contends a fair contribution should be based on 3 rather than 4 houses and consequently
finds the fair level of contribution should be reduced by a quarter to £21,000.

Since Kemsley LLP is a professional organisation reporting jointly to the Council and the applicant
it has a duty to be fair to both parties. It has carried out its assessment of viability thoroughly and
consequently its findings have been accepted by Officers. Indeed, Members are advised that as a
consequence of the process of carrying out an assessment of viability Kemsleys has enabled the
applicant to renegotiate the price for the site in order to ensure a contribution towards the off-site
provision of affordable housing could be made.

Page 42



In response to the findings of Kemsley LLP the applicant has offered a contribution of £21,000 in
order to address the requirements of policy E4B. While substantially less than a different applicant
previously agreed to, no weight should be given to the previous agreement because the level of
contribution was not justified by any viability assessment. Moreover, since that proposal turned
out to be unviable the fact is it cannot deliver any contribution towards affordable housing. The
viability of this proposal on the other hand has been independently assessed and the
recommended level of contribution is therefore properly justified. In the circumstances the
applicants’ offer, which is in accordance with the recommended level of contribution, would deal
with this policy matter.

Conclusion:

The proposed development is inappropriate in the Green Belt but, on balance, very special
circumstances in favour of the proposal that would outweigh the harm caused by reason if its
inappropriateness exist. The proposal would secure a very significant improvement in the
appearance of the site and in the setting of neighbouring listed buildings while not having a much
greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing poor form of development.
The principle of the loss of this employment site has previously been accepted by the District
Council and there is no basis for taking a different view on that matter. The requirements of policy
E4B in relation to the loss of employment sites would be properly, and with clear justification, met
through the level of financial contribution towards off-site affordable housing offered by the
applicant. Accordingly, the proposal complies with adopted planning policy and it is recommended
that conditional consent be given subject to the completion of s S.106 agreement to secure a
contribution of £21,000 towards off-site affordable housing provision within the District.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Stephan Solon
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564018

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 43



KEMSLEX.

Onr ref: GENAD02 113 HEW LOMDON ROAD
CHELMSFORD » BSSEN + CMZ iG]

12 July 2011 T. 0745 33EPEE + Fo 1245 354750
. Lo propestykemshey com
LL Hart Esq Epping Forest District Council wrw kermley com
Hart & Long Civic Offices
¢/o John Newton Associates High Street
Mortimers Epping
Back Lane CM164 BZ
Monks Eleigh Fror e i
Ipswich 'l FAO Stephan Solon (ref EPF/1008/11)
IP 77BA 14 JUL 201
|
Dcar Sirs i

Proposed Development Millrite Site, 151/153 London Road, Stanford Rivers, CM 5 9QF
Planning Application, reference EPF/1008/11

truction

I was instructed, jointly, to undertake an assessment of the affordable housing contribution which could
be levied on the proposed development Millrite Site at Stanford Rivers. T have been provided with layout
and elevation plans as proposed and a Design & Access Statement. 1 have not been provided with any
cost budgets, or likely end values. Mr Solon, for the Council, advised that no conditions have been
drafted at present, although they will cover amongst others: contamination; landscaping; appearance;
detail of materials. While no decision has been made, it looks likely consent will be forthcoming, subject
to a Section 106 Agreement to cover the contribution to affordable housing provision in the District (and
no other contributions). I obtained a copy of the layout plan from the Council's planning website.

There are two types of appraisal. Valuers tend to be trying to get to the site value, so do a residual
appraisal, deducting all likely costs and a profit margin from the Gross Development Value, to leave the
residual site value, By contrast, developers generally start from a site value, and end up with a profit
margin.

I inspected on 04 Tuly 2011, and met Mr Hart on site. | eonfirm, ather than that meeting, | have neither
met him, nor acted for him or his development company before.

I append some photographs taken by me during that inspection. Also, a copy of the layout plan 1
obtained (which also shows, edged red, the site plan).

Brief Description

This is a site, in the Metropolitan Green Belt, currently used for mixed residential and commercial
purposes, and generally somewhat rundown. It has been the subject of previous planning applications,
taken to appeal and dismissed on the basis it is necessary for any design to sensitively reflect the rural
surroundings and sciting of the listed buildings (the Woodman Public House and While Bears Mews). It
is situated in a rural location, but conveniently close to Ongar, which has good facilities.

Offices: Basiléen, Chalmsfard. London, Romiard
i

rReguioted by RICS

FeEi-0
Kammgey LLP & = Emitid Bozi ity g dnonhip registersd i Englond uncear nonbar OO 326092
T registesed office aodress b 118 Mew Lovdon oo Shamitend, B o 001

Page 44



- Millrite Site, Stanford Rivers, CMS5 9QF

I calculate the site is approximately 2614m? (0.65 acre). On it, at preml!m

originally agricultural buildings, together with some other buildings and a more recent two storey
strecture with infill linking area. Tt is accessed off a spur from London Road, and backs onto open land,
which appears to be used in conjunction with the adjacent residential property, and seems to be set out for
clay pigeon shooting. As all the existing buildings are proposed for demolition under the current planning
application, T need not concern mysell further with them. However, | suspect the previous use has
resulted in some contamination, although [ have not seen any soil reports. I am aware that a condition is
likely to be attached to the approval, if granted, requiring investigation, remediation and certification of
contamination.

Planning Application

A planning application is currently being considered by Epping Forest Dustrict Council, reference
EPF/1008/11, for "redevelopment of site to provide 4 detached chalet bungalows and garages”. This
includes change of use. The application has not yet been decided, indeed was only registered on 23 May
2011, I understand it was subjoct of nogotiation, and that conscnt 15 likely to be forthcoming, as it
reflects, both in design and scale, the points raised by the previous inspector. Such approval would be
subject to conditions, and, depending on this report, a contribution from affordable housing. 1 am advised
these conditions will be fairly standard, although including one about contamination.

The requirement for the affordable housing contribution is the subject of this report.

Proposals

The proposal is to demolish the existing structures and clear the site, then construct four detached chalet
bungalows, served off a shared access. Three of the dwellings would be long-ways onto their plots, with
only one width-wise. From plans provided, the accommodation would be as below. Each plot would
have an attached double garage, with living accommodation above. The design is with brick footings,
weatherboard elevations (presumably over blockwork), duo pitch roofs with living accommodation within
the roof space.

Plot |
doublc garage
ground floor, hall (stairs), cloakroom, lounge, dining room, kitchen, utility
first floor, landing, bedroom 1 ensuite/dressing, bathroom, bedroom 2, bedroom 3
Plot 2
douhle garage
ground floor, hall {stairs), study cloakroom, dining reom, lounge, kitchen, utility
first floor, landing, bedroom | ensuite, bedroom 2 ensuite, bathroom, bedroom 3 ensuite

Plot 3

double garage

ground floor, hall (stairs), cloakroom, lounge, kitchen, utility, study, dining room

first floor, landing, storage, bedroom | ensuite, bathroom, bedroom 2 ensuite, bedroom 3
Plot 5

double garage

ground floor, hall {stairs), cloakroom, study, kitchen, utility, lounge, dining room

first floor, bedroom | ensuite, bedroom 2 ensuite, bathroom, bedroom 3 ensuite/dressing

Page 2 of 7

Page 45



- Millrite Site, Stanford Rivers. CM5 9QF .
. KEMSLEY.

From plans provided, I calculate the following Gross Internal Areas (excluding the garages).

m? sq ft
Plot 1 174.9 1883
Plot 2 193.6 2084
Plot 3 194.4 2093
Plot 4 192.2 2069

Mains water, electricity and mains sewer are all on site (although new provisions will be required to the
proposed dwellings). Gas is not on site, but T am told it is nearby.

Appraisal

As | say, there are two types of appraisal, a development appraisal which starts from a known site value
and ends with a profitloss margin, and a residual appraisal which ends with a site value. WValuers
generally use the second, as they are endeavouring to get to a site value. However, for this purpose, the
development appraisal is more appropriate, and 1 have run two such appraisals, appended, one with and
the other without an affordable unit. 1 comment on the figures adopted below.,

Gross Development Value

This is based on my own estimation, from my experience, knowledge of other schemes and
rescarch of propertics on the market. As a general observation, these houses have a large floor
arca for only three bedrooms. This, and the resultant price, may restrict the market appeal. The
figures I have given break back to £284 to £305/square foot, and average £290.97/square foot. |
would expect it to be about £300, but have shaved it back slightly for only having three bedrooms,
This produces a Gross Development Value of £2,365,000.

Site Value

I have looked at this in vanious ways. First, I have camed out a residual appraisal to give a site
value of £754,110, based on my own calculation {and the figures as stated below, except targeling
a profit of 20% on Tolal Development Costs). Secondly, for rural properties of this character, |
would expeet the site value to be around 30% of the Gross Development Value. At present site
values are, in my experience, in the bracket of 25 to 30%, and [ would expect this to be at the
upper end. T would expect the plots to have a value of £180,000 each, 20 £720,000. 1 am told the
price agreed is £900,000, which scems high. 1 have, therefore adopted a site value of £825,000,
on the basis, if the vendor is seeking £900,000, I doubt it will be possible to negotiate it below this
amount.

Furchase Costs

Off £825,000, purchase costs would be £49,500, as shown in both appraisals.

Page 3 of 7

Page 46



Millrite Site, Stanford Rivers, CM35 9QF p
. KEMSLEY.

Development Costs

I have not been provided with any budget costs. 1 have, therefore, based it on my own expectation
and experience. 1 have based it on £1100/m® on the total Gross Internal Area {excluding garages)
of 755.1m%. 1 have then taken the garages with a combined area of 110.5m’ at £650/m®. 1 have
allowed a ballpark figure of £10,000 for contamination, taken fencing etc at £3000/plot, and the
aceess at £13,365 (33m at £405/linear metre). I have allowed a contingency at 5%, and fees at
6%.

Finance

I have aken twelve months from start to completion of the sale of the final unit, with a concurrent
nine months on the building costs (at half the amount to allow for the costs to be incurred over that
period). I have adopted 6% interest. While it would not be possible to borrow the whole amount,
it is usual to build in an interest allowance on the developer's own funding contribution as well.

Sales

I have taken sales costs at 1.5% for the agent and 0.5% for legal fees, based on the Gross
development Value.

Value Added Tax

I have disregarded the implications of VAT, as I have assumed any developer would be able to
offset it (VAT being payable on the difference between input and outputs).

Profit'Loss

As will be seen from the two appraisals, the profit with an allowance of £100,000 for the
affordable housing contribution, is 10%. This is below the range generally considered acceptable
of 15 to 20% on total development costs. Without such a conmbution, the profit is 15.9%, inside,
but at the lower end of that range.

Conclusion

In my opinion the scheme is not viable with an affordable housing contribution, and is unlikely to be built
out if one is imposed. Without such a contribution, it is viahle, although the profit margin is only just in
the acceptable range. This assumes that the price can be negotiated to £825,000.

I trust this provides the information you require, but please feel free to contact me if | can be of further
assistance. [ confirm 1 have received payment of my invoice from Mr Hart in the sum as agreed.

Yours faithfully

1= YIS PO

-

GE NICHOLLS FRICS FAAY
KEMSLEY LLP

Page 4 of T

Page 47



- Mjﬂ.-ilg Sile, Stanford Rivers, CMS O0F !,\ E MS L E\I.r

' thel o
R
Al

ol

Fuge 507

Page 48



EMSLEY.

APFPRAISAL WITH AFFORDARLE

Milleire Sire, Srantord Rivers, CM S 9O . }-’

Rubjeat: Land Raar of 104 High Straat, Ungar
Dawe: i1 July 2011

CAPITAL VALUE m’ aq ft
Ple 1 & neel ehelet wiih Intogysal clooble: porgn 174.6 1Aa3
Flot 2 J bed chalet with Intedral double garadge 193.0 2004
Flat 3 3 bed chalet with integral deuble garage 944 Ll
Piri 4 Aheed choled wilby iedegyzal doobde g a2 ARG
Gross Davalopmant Valua
o e
Gonsts
Sire L B25, 000
Purczhasn cosle
RORMS A 1.8 % £ 12378/
Ieaal fees 0.5 % £ 4123 |
eilearnpy duly 4 £ dduou |
Tirinpmony noms |
flocr area 7551 M
ul Ef® 10 £ B30010
qarages 1100L.R E 718268
contamination/axtamal L. 318385
conlingency 50 % £ 406080
forn nt B0 % £ ED.OE1
Tinance =1 B0 %,
site 12 menths £ SZavg
b ludirgp 8 months A e
Gales
agents al 4.2 % R . ]
lngyml mf 0.6 %h F 11,826
Affordable contribution £ 00,000
FROFITILOSSE 11.0 % E 223046
Summary
Giuss Dewluprent Value LE,0035,000
[t
glita £ AR DD
acguisiion costs L 48,500
Uiy ol wosle £1.043,771
finanee £ TR7RX
sale couli £ 47,300
allordabla contribuhon £ 00000
nrofitf s £ 033 B8
5'.2.353.@3
Page 6 of 7

Page 49



* Millrire Site, Sranford Rivers, Ch S 9037

KEMSLEY.

APFRA|SAL WITHOLIT ARROIRDARL =

Subject: Land Rear of 103 High Stract, Ongar
Date: A1 July 2011

CAPITAL VALUE it eap Il Lidaal
Pt 3 bed chalet with Inteqral double nerans 174.9 1883 £ ATR.O00
ot 2 4 bed chalet with integral double garage 193.6 2084] £ BYL.000
Plual 3 A e whaled wille nlegnal doulbe g aye 1844 20593 £ 05 M
Mot & 3 berd ehalet with Interyeal doable geeane 15 2 2CEO] £ &00O00N
Gress Develapmant Yakie £ 2365000
Less
Costs
Site £ D2%.000
Purmhano ooals
gagnks ol 1R £ 12378
l@gal faas 05 % L 4125
slamp duty 4 % £ 35000
Deveinpment coslks
flacr areg TEEA mt
ateim’ 1100 E 030,610
LRI 11045 £ TL82G
comamiration/actarnal L T
contingensy ok T E 4G.080
frrsaz il LI ¥ OARH R
Mnanes &l B.0 %
&ila 12 menths k5247
bauilding B monthe E 2819
Sales
agants al 15% £ 35475
Tesgedl s1l % 0.0 % E 11.B20
Afforcable contribution E
FROFITILOSS 159 % L 123848
£ 2 266,000
Summary
Larcss LWVl oomant Vaus L 2,355,000
Less.
mite £ 825000
acqubsiton costs £ 49800
develGOmet CO5E £1.043.771
finance £ 75783
il el £ A7, 3
affordable comrbuton £ -
profitioes £ 120,046
£2 366,000
Page 7 of 7

Page 50



LECATIN PLAA T |38

[Ril &3
Tur il

Page 51

L —
Laas i

1R
L&




KEMSLEY

1ha nEe WanBal B2 AR

Chor el GEMI0402

LiitLmaFURD - EESER - Gwdd 0T
lfﬁ.llll‘,l' 2011 T, O1245 35a%M 1ids daa758
[ETTATE RO
1.1. Hinl Fsg Cpping Forest Distriet Counel w
Hirl & Lang Civie Oifices
i Julin Newton Associarcs High Stiget
Mlontimers Epping
Rack Lane CMIT64BZ
Muouks Eleigh
|!1l:'ﬁil‘1h FAD 5[‘.‘{3"31'] Solon (ref EPEATOET)
IP7 7BA
Dear Sirs

Proposed Development Millrite Site, 151/153 London Road, Stanford Rivers, € M5 90OF
Planning Application, reference EPF/TINR/T L

Thie letter 18 Bupp]-:mcnuﬂ { my repunl af 12 July. In that, | was eritienl ol the a eed purchage piles of
£900.000. 1 ﬂd()pl':d o redhuiecd [.“.'il'- of £825.000, lh{ﬂkiﬂg it unlikely u Digure lower than that could be
negotiated, T warned Mr Hurt of this afler 1 had finalised my report. He rung me the next day, 1o say he
had woken up at 4am and (ol his wife | was right and he must spenk to the vendor, which he did, re-
nepatlating the price to £500,000 He asked me to reconsider my nppraals, hecause he thought thiz
might trigger some atforduble houwsing eontribution. | would like to record that 1 think thiswas very fair,
as he could have awaited the Counal's response to my inital report ind (hen nepaliated with the vendor,

Ag requested, 1 huve nn Ihree Turther appraisals, based off o price fir ihe site of L800,000, The first
includes a conmibution of £100.000, the second ne contribution, vl ihe thid the amount 1 conaider
appropriate as a fair contnbulion. 1 set out a suinimary below of e tw appraisals atached 1o my report
of 12/0711 and the thres ailched to this letter,

Apprinil fuppraical 0,000 £800,000 EROO,000

With Withoul With VWitheut Fa!r

Gross Dewelepment Valin  £2 385 000 | £2.304,000 | £2,965,000  £2 266,000 £ 2,300,000
Leee.

ritry £ UzSooD| £ BAEOONO| £ BDO,O00 £ BUULUD | L 800,000

acauigition oomte £ A 600 | £ 49500 | £ 48000 £ ARO0D | £ AH.000

devolopment cesls £1,043,771 | £, 043,771 | £1,043.777 £1.043.771 | £1,045 771

finnnoe IS Fe7e3lf 7ETRAA|F T4 103 £ 74183 £ 74193

fal& coEIE F AT,300 | & 4200 | £ 47,200 F  47300)E 47400

profit/inzes Foz2ugap | L J2i@4B | F O DRITER £ W0L.7O0 [ E JEITIO

TOTAL 5,365,000 | £2,305,000 | £2,905,000 2,366,000 | £2,585,000

Frofit % (exe contributiang 11.0% 15.8% 12.5% 17.6% 10.1%

Profit % (Ine conlibulion) 10.4% 18 0% 11.0% 17.5% 18 D0

Soess Baillden, Chelratard, | andnn. 3amiond

"
Regulaled Ly RICH @

Karnliyg LU (5 210 L Ly e promen ol it b Broghoad
fiomg oyt bome | o8 kom0 110 Bl LSASEA RS8O, LASITENGN

rrbver £ T2 1V

=r L]

Page 52



Millrite Site, Stanford Rivers, CM3 B0F

The Gross Development Value v the same in sach, The price of the site (highlighled yellow) is lerwer in
the "new" appraizals. Highliphlsd green, | have shown the affordable contribuiivn o £100,000 in the first
and third. and at nil i the seennd and fourth,

I the tinal one, | have siated a fipore | consider fair for the contribuiion. [ have endeavoured to Keep e
profit the sme ay nealiel i the second of the carlicr appraisuls, buih mmonetary and percentage 1crms
{as in the two e edypend boes ). This indicares a contribution of £25 (0.

At sk ol stryiny heyond my instiuetions, It seoms to me there are o houses proposed, but enc
existing dwelling lost. Sn, 1 think the contribution should be reduced hy a quarter to £21,000,

1 om swny o hirliday fiom tnight, but hops you find this selbesfelony. Should yeru wish 1o diseuss it my
collenue Slephen Millar may be able 1o assist, | know this s sel o go o committes while T am away.

Yours faithfully
%;Lw@

CE NICHOLLS FRICS FAAY
KEMSLEY LLF

Page 2 of §

Page 53



Millrte Site, Stanford Rivers, CM3 90F

APPHAISAL YWITH AFFORDABLE
SITE £A00,000

Subject; Land Rear of 103 High Street;, Ongar

Date: 14 July 2011

GAPITAL VALUE m* saft tatal
et A kel shaslel will inlegral double garace 174.0 1883 £ LreQQ0
Fiat £ 3 52d epale with integrl double yarage 1906 J084| £ BOB,O00
Pluid 3 bed chalel wih intearsl daubla gampe 1.4 2UE3| L 595,000
Plat 4 2 hed ehalol will inlagral double garage 162 3 2088 £ BULUY |
Gross Dovelepmant Value m,
Less )
Coss
Hile £ BOOO00
PFurrhrno cosls
Afents at 1.4 % £ 12000
lagal fees .6 % E 4,000
elamp duly 4 % £ A2.000
Dewelopment coats
Tlaor area TEE 1 m?
nt Efm# 1100 f AXNAI0
GAafaLges 1108 £ 71,025
conlamination'extarmal £ 36300
nonlingenoy 5.0 % £ 4f AD0
feas at 6.0 Y £ 55081
Firmnen:  al 6.0 &,
sla 12 menths L 50,820
bl iding A mionlbe £ 249.913
Lnlen
Bfants At 1.9 % L 35475
legal at & 0.8 % £ 1020
Afferdnble aoeiilalion £ 100,000
FROFIT/ILOSS 12.5 % £ 251.736
|
Summany
Grwss Development Yalue L2,268,000
Lkt
uila L 800 060
anguiaktinn nonis Ao
development £oata £1.043.771
finanee £ 74193
gsale romtn £ 47300
afferdabls cemtAbUtian £ 100 000
prrafit Az £ 261,73
£ 3,300,000
Paged ol 5

Page 54



Millrite Site. Stanford Rivers, CM3S 9QF

APFPRAISAL WITHOUT AFFORDARLF
SITE £800,000

Subject: Land Rear of 103 High Street, Gngar

Date: 14 July 2011

CAPITAL VALUE m* saf inial
Plat1 3 herd nhalul wilh inlogral deuble qarage 174.6 1884 £ 575000
Flol 2 4 bed chalat with integml doubly garags 193.6 2084} £ 505,000
Pimt 3 3 bued chalet with intégral doubla garagn 1844 2093 L 595,000
Plet 4 2 hed shaled wilh inlegial double garage i 2068| £ LUY, UL
Grom Dovelepmant Value 0o
Less
Casta
Eile £ BOO.000
Purchase oonis
agenta et 1.5 % £ 12,0
lagal tees 08 % £ 4. U
atnmp duly 4 % £ &2 000
Dawlopment coste
I drga 7554 m?
Bt Fime 1100 f &30 /10
gRrages 110.6 E 71,083
wunlaminalien/sxternal E 35365
eamingenny LU % £ 48 890
feas at A.0 % E 2900
Finanea i 5.0 %
site 12 menths | £ 50,880
Lrullding O monlhes E w33
Saea
agerlé Al 1.5 %% L 20475
layal at % 0.8 % F 1125
Afferdable contribirinm
FROFITLUSS 17.6 % £ 351.736
£2 38K 000
Bummary
Srree Development Vaues £2,365,000
1 pmne
=it £ 000,000
BCUIEUGA SORTR B AH.UOD
development costs 103 T
finannn £ 74193
salé 2412 £ 47300
allordable sentrbulion £ »
profit/lons £ 251.736
TF 2 385,000
Page 4 vl'3

Page 55



Millrite Site, Stanlerd Rivers, CM5 90T . KEM

SLEY

APPRAISAL FAIR AMOUNT
SITE £800.000

Subject: Land Rear of 103 High Street, Ongar

Nate: 14 July 2011

CAPITAL WALUE mm? £ H tetal
Flul 1 4 bad chalst with Integral dooble: gosgo 174.9 18Ra| £ F75,000
Pimr 2 3 bud chalel with integral doUE Garmne 1034 | L 95,000
Flot 3 3 ped chalat with inlegral double garage 104 4 083 £ LY
Plui4 4 bed chalet wih imaaral daoble gange Tz 2059 £ ¢
Gross Developmeont Valuwe
Luress .
Conde
Lite £ ann 0na
Furchase costs
ayenls al 1.5 % E 13,000
1aqml frnn Ly % L 4000
stamp duty 4 % E 42000
Deweinpmont conie
flaor mnen 7661 m®
al gm? 160 E Hau.e0
grngs 110.5 £ T1,B36
canlaminatianmxiemal L 35,065
conlingancy LA £ AG.HE0
feem of G0 % £ BA 081
Financa at A0 %
wily 12 monthke £ 50 REY
budliding ¥ manths £ 2231A
Bules
agenls ul 1.5 % f  aRA78
legal at b 0.5 % £ 11,825
Affevrdnbile contribution ¥ 28
PROFITILOEE 16.1 % £ A3 T
| £ 2,365 000

Summary
Eross Dewleameant YVilue £2 38R 000
Lyt
eilg £ ADD D00
mrnuinition susls Lo 4000
deglopmant enats E1.044.41
linance £ T4.1093
sale noels L 47.300
afferdable contrbatinn P 28,000
prulfililoas £ AR3 ThA
£ Z£,300,000
Page 5 of 5

Page 56



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East
LN 3 4
\ : \s\ 50.0m
\ \ 5y
@ < White Bear H§yse
\“x\\
Works
+ White Bear Col |‘
h The Woodman “II
(PH) \
Wells ““
+ 46.3m “\‘
The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map Agenda Item 3
with the permission of the Controller of Her Number:
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. . . R
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Appllcatlon Number: EPF/1008/11
Copyrigclll_'nt and may lead to prosecution or civil Site Name- Millrite Engineering 151 - 153
proceedings. : , -
EFDC licence No.100018534 oo I1_;)2n5dooon Road, Stanford Rivers, CM5
Page 57




Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1136/11

SITE ADDRESS: 4 Vicarage Lane
North Weald Bassett
Epping
Essex
CM16 6ET
PARISH: North Weald Bassett
WARD: North Weald Bassett
APPLICANT: Mr Brett Singh

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Single storey rear and side extensions and loft conversion.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528551

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

3 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window

openings in both the side facing dormer windows shall be entirely fitted with
obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of
the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that
condition.

4 The flat roof of the entire rear and side single-storey additions to the house shall not

be used as a balcony and no furniture, including tables and chairs shall be placed on
the roof.

This application was deferred by Members at the Committee heard on the 17" August 2011 for
Members to carry out a site visit.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Page 58




Description of Proposal:

Single storey rear and side extensions and loft conversion. The side extension measures 2.5m
extending to the side boundary, with the rear extension 2m deep creating an ‘L’ shaped extension
around the existing rear flat roofed extension. The loft conversion incorporates a hip to gable
extension at the rear along with two flat roof side facing dormers and a pitched roof dormer to the
front elevation.

Description of Site:

4 Vicarage Lane is a detached bungalow within a row of similarly designed bungalows within a
small built up area on the edge of North Weald. The property is not within the Green Belt or a
Conservation Area.

Relevant History:

EPF/0844/86 — Extension — Approved with conditions

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations

CP2 — Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBES9 - Loss of amenity

DBE10 — Residential extensions

Summary of Representations:

NORTH WEALD PARISH COUNCIL — The Parish Council Objects to this application on the
following grounds: Visual impact on the neighbouring property, dormer window overlooking on to
the neighbouring property, the property is being built on to the boundary line, overdevelopment.

NEIGHBOURS
4 neighbours were consulted and the following response was received:

3 VICARAGE LANE — Objection — side dormer on privacy grounds, close proximity of the side
extension and loss of light and visual impact, concerns over future maintenance issues.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues that arise with this application are the following:

o Design Issues
e |Impact on Neighbouring Amenity

Design

The proposal is generally acceptable and although there is a large area of flat roof for the single
storey side/rear extension, as this is to the rear it is acceptable as it is would not be visible from
the street. The visible part of the side extension has a false pitched roof and this would appear
appropriate within the streetscene. Although built up to the side boundary, since it would be
single-storey and set back well beyond the front elevation the existing visual gap between the flank
of the house and boundary with the adjacent property would be maintained. This arrangement is
considered acceptable.

Page 59



The front dormer is similar to the dormer approved and currently being built at No. 8 Vicarage
Lane and is considered acceptable and well placed within the existing roof slope.

The side dormers, although visible from the street are to be placed low enough within the roof
slope to avoid a bulky, top heavy appearance. Members are advised the side dormers and rear
hip to gable element could be completed as permitted development and therefore planning
permission is not required for this part of the proposal.

Having regard to the sympathetic relationship of the proposal as a whole to the design of the
existing house, it would complement the appearance of the house and therefore have an
acceptable appearance. It would comply with planning policy relating to design and, contrary to
the assessment of the Parish Council, would not appear as an overdevelopment of the site.

Amenity

The proposal is generally acceptable in terms of impact on neighbouring amenity. The side
dormers are shown to have obscure glass and this can be conditioned to ensure that this is
implemented with fixed frames up to a height of 1.7m. This would minimise any perception of loss
of privacy to neighbouring properties.

Although the single-storey addition would extend to the boundary, it would not result in such a
significant loss of light to the neighbouring property at No. 3 to justify a refusal.

As a whole, the proposal would not cause excessive harm to the amenities of either neighbouring
property and therefore complies with planning policy relating to that matter.

Conclusion:

Since the proposal is considered acceptable and to comply with relevant planning policies,
approval is recommended.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564371

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qgov.uk

Page 60



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

13) 7

©
S~/
~o2
/
/
/
y /
ARRET /
: /
/
/
/

i/\ 5 /] ~~_
N/
{ Y
WX
A Ve
)
|
|
|
|
/
/
/
[

El Sub St//

s

The material contained in this plot has been

reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map Agenda Item 4

with the permission of the Controller of Her Number:

Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. . . X

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown App"catlon Number: EPF/1136/11

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil " -

proceedings. Site Name: 4 Vicarage Lane, North Weald Bassett
CM16 6ET

EFDC licence No.100018534 Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 61



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/1159/11
SITE ADDRESS: Marden Ash House
Stanford Rivers Road
Ongar
Essex
CM5 9BT
PARISH: Ongar
WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash
APPLICANT: Mr Stephen Lawley

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Extension of existing drop kerb/crossover providing a no-dig

driveway to existing car park.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528659

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1

The proposal would lead to the creation of a substandard access on a stretch of
Secondary Distributor highway where the principal function is that of carrying traffic
freely and safely between centres of population. The slowing and turning of vehicles
associated with the use of the access would lead to conflict and interference with the
passage of through vehicles to the detriment of that principal function and introduce
a further point of possible traffic conflict to the detriment of highway safety, contrary
to policy ST4 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

The applicant does not appear to control sufficient land to provide the required
vehicular visibility splays of 215m x 2.4m x 215m. Furthermore, the creation of such
visibility splays would result in harm to protected trees and to the rural character of
the Metropolitan Green Belt, contrary to Policies LL10 and GB2A of the adopted
Local Plan and Alterations. The lack of visibility would also result in an
unacceptable degree of hazard to all road users to the detriment of highway safety,
contrary to Policy ST4 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

The proposed crossover would provide access to the site for tall vehicles (e.g. large
vans, lorries etc.) adjacent to preserved trees. The use of the access by such
vehicles would cause harm to overhanging tree branches and could, therefore, be
potentially detrimental to the health of the protected trees adjacent to the proposed
driveway, contrary to policy LL10 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Jacobs
(Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (h) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Page 62




Description of Proposal:

This application seeks planning permission for an extension to an existing vehicular access to
provide vehicular access into Marden Ash House across land which falls within the ownership of
the applicants. This application is submitted as a result of difficulties using the existing driveway
due to a land ownership dispute. The access point would be located to the front of Marden Ash
House, on the Stanford Rivers Road (A113). A recessed gateway is proposed on a new driveway,
created within the site.

Description of Site:

The application site comprises a detached, Grade |l listed dwelling, set on a large plot with
gardens located to the front and to both sides and a small courtyard located to the rear. Presently,
vehicular access is provided from Stanford Rivers Road across land adjacent to the site within
separate ownership. The area to the front of the dwelling is protected by a group TPO and the
whole site lies within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

The Stanford Rivers Road (A113) adjacent to the application site is subject to a national speed
limit (60mph). Beyond the site, this speed limit reduces to 30mph.

Relevant History:

None relevant — in the 1960’s, 1970’s and 1980’s planning applications were submitted and
refused for outline planning permission for residential development.

Policies Applied:

Local Plan

CP2 - Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE 1 — Design

GB2A — Development in the Green Belt

ST4 — Road Safety

LL10 — Adequacy of Provision for Retention

Summary of Representations:

Notification of this application was sent to Ongar Town Council and to 7 neighbouring properties.
A site notice was also displayed.

The following representations have been received to date:

ONGAR TOWN COUNCIL: No Objection (subject to...) Ongar Town Council does not object to
this application subject to approval of the Highways Officer at Essex County Council.

N.B. ECC Highways has raised an objection to the proposal.

1 MARDEN ASH MEWS: Comment: We have no objection to the proposal, unless the creation of
a separate driveway to the Marden Ash House car park is a stepping stone to provide separate
access to the land behind Marden Ash House and the building upon that land. \We use the
footpath to regularly walk into Ongar with our baby’s pram - concerned over the proposed length of
the drop kerb. From the submitted plans, the drop kerb seems to extend for quite a distance
between the proposed and existing driveways which will give a long distance where vehicles can
cross the pavement. Question if a kerb should be in situ in the gap between the two driveways, so
minimising the ‘exposed’ distance.

Page 63



Issues and Considerations:

The main issues to be considered are the impacts of the proposed development on:

highway safety;

protected trees;

the setting of the listed building;
neighbouring amenity; and

the green belt.

Highway Safety

Consultation has taken place with Officers from County Highways, who have visited the application
site. They have advised, as proposed by the occupiers of 1 Marden Ash Mews, that if the
development did proceed, the new crossover should be formed independently and not as an
extension of the existing crossover, as depicted on the submitted plans. If the Council was minded
to grant planning permission, such an alteration could be secured by the use of a planning
condition.

However, notwithstanding this, Officers from County Highways have raised objection to the
proposal on the following grounds:

1. The proposal would lead to the creation of a substandard access on a stretch of Secondary
Distributor highway where the principal function is that of carrying traffic freely and safely
between centres of population. The slowing and turning of vehicles associated with the use
of the access would lead to conflict and interference with the passage of through vehicles
to the detriment of that principal function and introduce a further point of possible traffic
conflict to the detriment of highway safety.

2. As far as can be determined the applicant does not appear to control sufficient land to
provide the required vehicular visibility splays of 215m x 2.4m x 215m. The lack of such
visibility would result in an unacceptable degree of hazard to all road users to the detriment
of highway safety.

In relation to the first point, Planning Officers note that there is no intensification of vehicle
movements proposed through this application and therefore, the movements described exist
presently, albeit slightly further along the road, utilising the existing access point. However, the
proposed development would give rise to the possibility of both access points being used at the
same time. Furthermore, due to the rural setting of the site and the protected trees along the
frontage it would not be possible to improve the visibility, without causing serious harm to visual
amenity. It is, therefore, the balanced opinion of Planning Officers that the proposed development
would be detrimental to highway safety, for reasons set out by County Highways Officers.

Protected Trees

The Council’s Arboriculturist has been consulted on the application and has provided comments,
as detailed below:

This application requires very detailed consideration of the proposal’s impact on trees. A ‘Tree
Constraints Plan’ and ‘Arboricultural Implications Assessment’ has been submitted and attempts to
mitigate for gross incursions into root zones. Whilst it is physically possible to achieve this
proposal, it does place extreme pressure on one good Lime in particular; T3. The level change
from the inner edge of the footpath into the site favours a no dig construction, but such a design
will require great control. Additionally, to link to the highway crossover a much deeper dig will be

Page 64



required under the footpath and this may be harmful to the root systems of several of the group of
trees.

It is stated that only cars will use this access but nothing would be in place to physically prevent a
high sided vehicle from trying to access the property from this new narrow and considerably lower
driveway. Some form of height restriction must be imposed to protect the crowns of the
overhanging trees.

The gate itself will have an impact on T3, Lime in the founding of the piers to support it. This must
be considered and mitigated by locating the gate as far from T3 as possible.

In general the scheme appears unlikely to fulfil these requirements but there are potential means
of achieving it, if desired by the Applicant. Accordingly, it is the view of the Council’s Arboriculturist
that the necessary controls may allow for a lightweight, low impact and possibly temporary drive to
be constructed and threaded by these important landscape features.

Whilst it is possible to ensure that serious harm to important trees is avoided by the imposition of
planning conditions, the proposal for a physical height restriction would require a structure which
may, in itself, be inappropriate within the setting of the listed building. Accordingly, the imposition
of this condition would require careful consideration. If a height restriction were considered
acceptable in principle, then further details would need to be sought for approval.

Setting of the Listed Building

It is not considered that the principle of the development proposed would cause any material harm
to the setting of the listed building. Notwithstanding this, the Historic Buildings Advisor at Essex
County Council has commented that it would not be appropriate to replicate the existing gate, as
proposed, as a simpler, more subservient entrance would be more appropriate. If planning
permission is granted, a condition may be imposed to require an alternate, more appropriate,
design.

Neighbouring Amenity

The proposed development would not harm the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of
neighbouring dwellings.

Green Belt

Subject to a suitable design for the gate and the general retention of the landscaping along the site
frontage, which makes a positive contribution to the rural character of the site, it is not considered
that the proposal would be detrimental to the wider Green Belt. However, if the visibility spays
required to satisfy the Highway Authority were enforced then in addition to affecting protected
trees this would also be likely to have an adverse impact on the character and visual amenities of
this part of the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Conclusion:

In light of the above appraisal, it is considered on balance that the proposed development would
cause material harm to highway safety. Some concerns raised in respect of the impact of the
proposal on trees and the suitability of the gate design may be mitigated by the use of planning
conditions. However, the proposal for a height restriction, due to the proximity of the site in
relation to the listed building, would require careful consideration. If an acceptable design does
not exist, then it would be unreasonable to impose a planning condition, as it would be contrary to
the tests set out in Circular 11/95. It is, therefore considered that if the Council was minded to
grant planning permission then this information should be sought prior to a decision being taken.

Page 65



In the absence of such information, if the Council decides to refuse planning permission then this
matter should be referred to as a reason. It is recommended that planning permission be refused,
for the reasons discussed.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Mrs Katie Smith
Direct Line Telephone Number: (01992) 564109

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qgov.uk

Page 66



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

Allotment Gardens

El Sub Sta

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Iltem 5
Number:
Application Number: | EPF/1244/11

Site Name: Quality Hotel (The Bell Hotel), High Road,
Epping, CM16 4DG
Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 67




Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1244/11
SITE ADDRESS: Quality Hotel (The Bell Hotel)
High Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 4DG
PARISH: Epping
WARD: Broadley Common, Epping Upland and Nazeing

Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common

APPLICANT: Mr Hassan Somani

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Partial demolition of Bell Inn and erection of extension and
care home. Reserved matters (access, appearance,
landscaping, and layout) following approval of outline
application EPF/0279/08.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (with Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528965

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: 20834 P 010 Rev: A, 20834 P 012, 20834 P 013, 20834 P
014, 20834 P 019, 1895 05 Rev: A, 1895 06 Rev: A, 1895 07 Rev: A, 1895 08 Rev:
A, 1895 10/A

This application is before this Committee since it is an application for development of a significant
scale and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (c) of the
Council’s Delegated Functions) and since the recommendation differs from the views of the local
council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Description of Proposal:

Reserved matters application for the partial demolition of the current hotel and to construct a new
building that is to comprise a residential care home and a new hotel extension to the original
building. The previous outline planning permission assessed the principle, scale and siting of the
proposed development, and therefore this reserved matters application simply deals with access,
appearance, landscaping and layout.

Page 68




It is proposed to remove the two wings behind the original building to the north and replace them
with a three storey ‘L’ shape building that is to comprise a care home of 70 single bedrooms with
associated living accommodation such as communal lounges and dining areas. The building
footprint of the development will be approximately 41m by 39m and the care home would reach a
maximum height of 10.5m.

It is also proposed to construct a new extension between the original building and the wing to the
north that is to remain. The extension is to provide a link from the original building to the hotel wing
and will comprise a new reception area, lobby, offices and W/C’s. It is intended to provide up to 50
guest rooms within the remaining hotel wing.

The proposed development is to include associated vehicle parking and landscaping for both the
care home and the hotel. A total of 64 vehicle spaces will be provided for the hotel, plus 6 spaces
for staff and 16 spaces for the care home.

Description of Site:

The subject site is situated on the northern side of the High Road approximately 20m east of
Theydon Road and is just on the outskirts of Epping. The site itself is relatively level and
comprises approximately 1.5 hectares. Mature vegetation is located on the side and rear boundary
and is also scattered throughout the site, particularly the eastern portion of the site.

Currently located on the site there are large double storey buildings that are used as guest rooms
and associated facilities for the Quality Hotel. Vehicle parking for guests and staff are located
towards the front of the site and behind the original building in between two of the hotel wings.
There are two existing crossovers located on the High Road that provide vehicle access to and
from the site.

The oldest section of the hotel, known as the ‘Old Bell Hotel’, is located in the south western
corner of the site and was once used as a Coaching Inn in the 16" century. This section is the
original building on the site and today it consists of a reception area, bar, restaurant, and a
conference area for the current hotel, which is known as the Quality Hotel. Three distinct double
storey wings are located to the north and north-east of the original building which were constructed
in the 1960s and 1980s to be used as hotel rooms. In total there are 80 hotel rooms within the
three wings.

The subject site and the surrounding area are located within the Metropolitan Green Belt and the
Bell Common Conservation Area. Located directly west of the site is a private residence known as
Bell Cottage, which is a double storey detached dwelling. Further west, within Boundary Close, are
5 small detached and semi detached double storey dwellings. Located directly east of the subject
site is a private residence known as Bell Farm Cottage, which is also a double storey detached
dwelling. Open fields that are used for agricultural purposes are located to the north of the site and
the open space of Bell Common is located on the opposite side of the High Road.

Relevant History:

There have been a number of planning applications and conservation area consent applications
submitted dating back to the late 1950’s. However the most relevant and recent applications
relating to the proposed scheme are as follows:

EPF/0988/98 - Partial demolition and redevelopment of existing bedroom blocks and ancillary
accommodation and site works — refused 26/05/99

EPF/0989/98 - Conservation area consent application for the partial demolition of hotel complex —
approved 26/05/99

Page 69



EPF/1400/99 - Amended application for the erection of extensions including replacement bedroom
block — approved/conditions 08/12/99

EPF/0988/04 - Renewal of planning consent EPF/1400/99 for the erection of extensions including
replacement bedroom block — approved/conditions 05/07/04

EPF/0989/04 - Renewal of planning permission CAC/EPF/989/98 for the partial demolition of hotel
complex — approved 05/07/04

EPF/2360/06 - Outline application for the partial demolition of The Bell Inn and erection of new
bedroom wing and Care Home — refused 09/02/07

EPF/2361/06 - Conservation Area Consent for the partial demolition of The Bell Inn — refused
09/02/07

EPF/0279/08 - Outline application for the partial demolition of The Bell Inn and erection of new
extension and Care Home — approved/conditions 19/06/08

EPF/0120/11 - Extension of time limit on EPF/0279/08 (Outline application for the partial
demolition of The Bell Inn and erection of new extension and Care Home) — withdrawn 20/04/11
EPF/1084/11 - Extension of time limit on EPF/0279/08 (Outline application for the partial
demolition of The Bell Inn and erection of new extension and Care Home) — Currently under
consideration

Policies Applied:

CP2 - Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
CP3 - New development

CP9 - Sustainable transport

HC6 - Character, appearance and setting of conservation areas
HC7 - Development within conservation areas

HC9 - Demolition in conservation areas

DBE1 - Design of new buildings

DBE?2 - Effect on adjoining properties

DBE3 - Design in urban areas

DBESG - Car parking in new development

DBES9 - Loss of amenity

GB2A - Development in the Green Belt

GB7A - Conspicuous development

LL10 - Adequacy of provision for landscape retention

LL11 - Landscaping schemes

ST1 - Location of development

ST2 - Accessibility of development

ST4 - Road safety

ST6 - Vehicle parking

CF2 - Health care facilities

Summary of Representations:

24 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice displayed on 30/06/11

EPPING TOWN COUNCIL - Object to this application and consider the proposals an
overdevelopment of the site. The care home section being disproportionately high and far too
uninteresting to be of value in the conservation area. Request that the Council consider the need
for greater interest, more articulation of the roof profile and frontage, and a reduction in the scale
of the building.

CITY OF LONDON - No objection.

Page 70



Issues and Considerations:

The principle of development on this site, including the scale and siting of the buildings, was
established when outline planning permission was granted in June 2008. Consequently matters of
fundamental principle cannot be raised at this reserved matters stage, and similarly the Town
Council’s objection on the basis of ‘overdevelopment and request for a “reduction in scale” are not
relevant in this instance. The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the
following:

Means of access;

The appearance of the development and impact on the Bell Common Conservation Area;
Landscaping;

General site layout.

As outline consent has been granted for the development it has previously been accepted that
there are sufficient very special circumstances to permit this inappropriate development within the
Green Belt and that the location of the site, in terms of sustainability, is acceptable.

Access and parking:

The proposed development would use the existing access points from the High Road to serve both
the hotel and new care home. As these are existing access points that serve a large hotel site the
use for a care home to partially replace/in addition to the existing hotel would not be detrimental to
highway safety or result in an unacceptable increase in traffic movements. The development
proposes a total of 86 vehicle parking spaces, with these shown as 64 for the hotel, 6 for hotel
staff and 16 for the proposed care home. Whilst 16 spaces for the care home is less than that
required by the Essex County Council Vehicle Parking Standards (which requires 23), there is
adequate parking for both the care home and hotel when taken as a whole. As such it is likely that
usersl/visitors of the proposed care home would use the spaces allocated for the hotel building
when required. As such, when considered as a whole site, the development would have sufficient
off-street parking provision.

Design and appearance:

The Bell Hotel is a prominent site in the Bell Common Conservation Area. The Bell Common
Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan were produced in 2010 and
identified the Bell Hotel site as a site with potential for new development. Within this document it is
stated that:

“There is one site with considerable potential for new development and that is the site of
the Bell Hotel. The site is about 1.5 sq. hectares and consists of the Bell Hotel (early 16"
century), a large 1960s block and a large 1980s block. This site could be improved with
some new buildings in keeping with the character of the area. It would be beneficial to keep
the 16" century part of the Bell Inn and if possible restore it to its former appearance by
removing the front porch and the modern buildings behind it”.

Whilst the proposed application is similar to the indicative plans received at outline stage, these
have been altered as a result of pre-application discussions between the Agent, the Planning
Officer and the Council’'s Conservation Officer. The main changes are that the roof of the proposed
care home has been broken up so that large sections of the building now have considerably lower
ridge heights, as opposed to the original indicative plan that showed two large continuous roofs.
This has added more visual interest to the building and has reduced the overall bulk and expanse
of the roof. Furthermore, the design of the building is similar to the scale and size of the previous
scheme that was approved in 2004.

Page 71



The other material alteration relates to the provision of a pitched roof ‘fascia’ to conceal the
existing flat panelled fascias over the windows of the front porch, with the pitch of roof matching
the main building behind, using tiles obtained from existing buildings intended for demolition. This
would help to conceal and regularise the existing and unsightly modern porch extension located on
the 16™ century building and would visually improve the appearance of the front of the building,
which is an important and prominent building within the conservation area. Due to the visual
improvements resulting from the removal of the existing unsightly rear additions, the erection of a
more acceptable building, and the alterations to the front of the building, the proposed
development is considered to enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area.

Landscaping:

There are two trees towards the front of the site that are covered by tree preservation orders. The
proposed development would have no impact on these trees either during or after construction.
The remaining existing landscaping can also be retained, and suitably augmented by new planting,
and is already subject to landscaping conditions imposed on the outline consent. As these
conditions would still stand there is no requirement for further landscaping conditions to be added
to this reserved matters approval.

Site layout:

The location and footprint of the proposed development would match the indicative plans
submitted with the outline consent, and would be similar to that approved in 2004. The car park
would be predominantly located towards the side/rear of the buildings and therefore would not be
visually prominent. The development would not result in a loss of amenities to surrounding
residents. As such the layout of the proposed development is considered acceptable.

Other issues:

The outline planning consent contains conditions relating to tree protection, additional hard and
soft landscaping, the submission of a Flood Risk Assessment, the need for external materials to
be agreed, and regarding the provision/retention of car parking. Furthermore, there are already
conditions imposed regarding hours of construction and the need for wheel washing facilities. As
such these conditions do not need to be repeated on the reserved matters consent.

Conclusion:

In conclusion, it is considered that the proposal will result in a development in line with that
approved at outline stage and which would improve the character and overall appearance of the
area. The principle of this development within the Green Belt has been agreed and the proposal
would not detrimentally impact on neighbouring amenities, highway safety or existing landscaping.
As such the proposal is in accordance with national Guidance and the relevant policies in the
Local Development Plan and the application is therefore recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 72



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

Allotment Gardens

El Sub Sta

The material contained in this plot has been

reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map Agenda Item 6

with the permission of the Controller of Her Number:

Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. . . R

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Appllcatlon Number: EPF/1244/11

[of ight and lead t ti ivil

oroceodings. | o Brosecution or el Site Name: Quality Hotel (The Bell Hotel), High Road,
Epping, CM16 4DG

EFDC licence No.100018534 Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 73



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/1251/11
SITE ADDRESS: Chestnuts
The Green
Theydon Bois
Epping
Essex
CM16 7JH
PARISH: Theydon Bois
WARD: Theydon Bois
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Wayne Reader

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Ground floor side extension, new dormer over existing garage

extensions and alterations to elevations. (Revised scheme to
EPF/0424/11, incorporates lower roof to side extension.)

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528991

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to
any variation.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where

Page 74




appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

This application is before this Committee since a) the recommendation differs from the views of
the local council (pursuant to section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s delegated functions).

Description of Proposal:

Ground floor side extension, new dormer over existing garage extension, and alterations to
elevations (Revised scheme to EPF/0424/11 incorporating lower roof to side extension). The
extension would incorporate a kitchen and new porch.

Description of Site:

A bungalow located on the corner of Loughton Lane and The Green.

Relevant History:

EPF/0424/11 proposed a similar ground floor side extension to that now proposed but was refused
because 1) its size, raised position above ground level, and large expanse of brickwork, would
detract from the appearance of the property and street scene, and 2) in the absence of tree impact
details the proposed extension would be likely to be detrimental to the health and vitality of a
preserved horse chestnut tree located near to the front boundary of the site.

Policies Applied:

DBE9 - Loss of amenity.
DBE10 — Residential extensions.
LL10 — Adequacy of provision for landscape retention.

Summary of Representations:

THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL — Our reason for objecting to the original application
EPF/0424/11 was as follows — “our objection arises given the excessive (some 7metres) width of
the proposed ground floor side extension. The proposal does not respect the existing building line
to Loughton Lane. We consider that given the excessive width the proposed development would
have an overbearing impact upon this conspicuous corner immediately opposite the village green
and which is therefore a sensitive and prominent location in the village street scene.” Save for the
submission of an arboricultural impact assessment, and the addition of some windows in the
proposed extension, we cannot see that any changes have been made since the original
application. Upon a comparison of the measurements of the proposal as shown on the original
plans with the revised plans submitted under this application the dimensions would appear to be
identical. Hence we cannot see that our original objection has been addressed and therefore our
original reason for objection still stands in respect of this latest application.

NEIGHBOURS - 11 properties consulted and no replies received.

EFDC TREES AND LANDSCAPE SECTION - there is a protected horse chestnut tree on the site.
An arboricultural impact assessment has been provided, which demonstrates that with careful

Page 75



implementation the tree should remain unharmed as a result of the proposal. In order to achieve
this, a full tree protection methodology should be conditioned. In addition works to the front drive
and porch call for a hard and soft landscaping scheme to be conditioned to ensure the tree
remains undamaged. In conclusion we have no objection to this application subject to conditions
requiring details of a) tree protection and b) hard and soft landscaping.

Issues and Considerations:

The applicants have now submitted a tree impact assessment, and given the comments of the
Trees and Landscape section as set out above one of the two reasons for refusal of the previous
application has been adequately addressed.

The other reason for refusal of the earlier scheme related to the size, raised position and design of
the extension. The extension would be built on a section of front garden to the side of the existing
bungalow. This section of garden is at a lower level than the house but on the previous application
the height of the extension would share the same height as the main property. On this revised
application however, the ridge of the proposed extension has been reduced by 0.55m and this
reduction in height reduces the mass of the extension, and makes it read as subordinate to the
main dwelling. In addition more windows have been introduced in the side elevation and this
provides an improved appearance over the large expanse of brickwork proposed on the earlier
rejected scheme. The proposal will incorporate vertical sliding sash windows and these will be
introduced on the main dwelling as well to replace existing utilitarian casement windows. Although
the Parish Council are correct in saying the floor area size of the extension has not changed, the
revisions described above do improve the appearance of the extension. In addition there is no
clear building line and the extension, which will be located a minimum of 3m in from the side
boundary, will now be an acceptable addition in the street scene. Finally, a fast growing laurel
hedge has been planted just inside the front boundary of the site and this will provide some
screening and softening of the proposed extension when viewed from The Green or Loughton
Lane.

Conclusions:

The revisions made in this new application result in an acceptable proposal, and planning
permission is duly recommended subject to conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qgov.uk

Page 76



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

Thistle
Cottage

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map Agenda Item 7
with the permission of the Controller of Her Number:
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. . . X
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Appllcatlon Number: EPF/1251/11
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil "
proceedings. Site Name: Chestnuts, The Green
Theydon Bois, CM16 7JH
EFDC licence No.100018534 ’
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page /7



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/1254/11

SITE ADDRESS: 156-158 High Street
Ongar
Essex
CM5 9JJ

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash

APPLICANT: Mrs Kristina Ponsford

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Change of use of ground floor from shop (A1 Use Class) to a
mixed use comprising childrens soft play area (D2 Use Class)
and coffee shop (A3 Use Class).

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=528995

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The proposal would result in the loss of a double frontage shop use (Use Class A1)
from the key retail frontage of the Ongar town centre, as defined in the Epping
Forest District Local Plan and Alterations. It would increase the proportion of non-
retail frontage within the key retail frontage, exacerbating the impact of an already
excessively high proportion of non-retail frontage on the vitality and viability of the
shopping centre. The use would threaten the long term vitality and viability of the
shopping centre by undermining its retail function and therefore contribute to a threat
to its position in the hierarchy of town centres within the District. Accordingly, the
proposal is contrary to policies TC1 and TC4 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan
and Alterations.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Description of Proposal:

Permission is sought to change the existing use of the commercial premises from retail (A1 use)
into a mixed use comprising a children’s soft play area (D2 use) and coffee shop (A3 use). The
first floor use will remain unchanged as residential accommodation.

Description of Site:

The unit lies to the east of High Street, Ongar. It is a double frontage commercial retail unit and it
is presently vacant with residential accommodation above at first floor level. The entrance into the
flat is accessed through a side doorway. The adjacent unit to the north, No 162, is a restaurant (A3

Page 78




use) and the immediate southern boundary is demarcated by a narrow road that provides access
to St Martins Mews. Beyond this lies No. 150, a commercial unit that trades as Ongar Hardware
store (A1 use).

The unit lies within Ongar Town centre boundary and is also within its key frontage. The building is
a listed building and the site lies within the Conservation Area boundary.

The internal useable floor area measures approximately 254 square metres.

Relevant History:

No recent/ relevant history

Policies Applied:

TC1 — Town centre hierarchy

TC3 - Town centre

TC4 — Non retail frontage

HC7 and HC10 — Conservation area/ listed building
DBE9 — Neighbour amenity

Representation

16 properties consulted and one letter of representation has been received.

154 HIGH STREET — Objection: We have had many unsatisfactory dealings with this applicant
with regards to access to our property. The police have been called on occasions when whilst
heavily pregnant my wife was denied access off of the High Street. | am led to believe he has
mislead the managers to this project as to which land he owns. Even last week the police were
called when a lockable post was being erected by an employee of the applicants to block our
access.

ONGAR TOWN COUNCIL - Ongar Town Council considered this proposal to be appropriate and
innovative use of the premises in the centre of Ongar and support this application. The applicant
has indicated that the portion of the premises designated as “café” will serve beverages and baked
potatoes. Ongar Town Council believes that consideration should be given to imposing a condition
preventing the serving of other kinds of hot food.

Although not a planning issue, Ongar Town Council believes there should be adequate
safeguarding for children visiting the premises.

Issues and Considerations:

The key issues for consideration relevant to this application are the impact on the vitality and
viability of the town centre. Also considered is the amenity and living conditions of nearby
residential properties.

Principle of change of use - Vitality and Viability of Retail Centre

The premises are presently vacant although the last known use was as a retail shop unit. The
double fronted unit is identified in the Adopted Plans Map as one within the town centre of Ongar.
The Council’'s Town Centre policies TC1 and TC3, seek to safeguard and encourage a range of

Page 79



local shopping facilities to meet the essential needs of residents while encouraging the long term
viability and vitality of the area.

The Town Council supports the proposed change of use of this unit because it will be an
innovative use of the premises. This view is supported by policy TC1 which supports proposals
that sustain or improve the vitality of town centre locations. There are no similar existing uses
within the town centre, as such it is considered that this is an innovative use of the site that will
benefit the vitality of the town centre.

The policy also seeks uses which will either ‘maintain or not adversely affect their position in the
Town Centre Hierarchy’. Policy TC3 reinforces the approach to controlling land use in designated
town centres. The proposed change of use will bring a vacant unit into use preventing dead
daytime frontage, thus it satisfies requirement (iv) of this policy. The use of the premises as a
children’s play area with a coffee shop will encourage visitors to the site during the daytime and
evening during the opening times proposed. The residential accommodation above will not be
compromised and the ground floor will continue to serve as a commercial unit. Due to its position
within this town centre location, the proposed use satisfies the criteria contained within policy TC3.

The site is however within the key frontage of the Town Centre. The other key policy issue
therefore will be the loss of an A1 retail unit that forms part of the Key Frontage of Ongar High
Street and what impact this will have on the future long term vitality and viability of this town
centre.

PPS4 - Planning for sustainable economic growth emphasizes the Government’s objective to
maintain vitality and viability in town centres, to promote sustainable economic growth. Council
policy TC4, seeks to safeguard and encourage a range of local shopping facilities to meet the
essential needs of residents because this will enhance the long term viability and vitality of the
area.

The subject site is presently vacant and the applicant advises the unit has been vacant for 3 to 4
years. A material consideration is the length of time the property has remained vacant. There is no
supplementary evidence submitted with the application to prove how long this property has been
vacant and whether the unit has been actively marketed for its present A1 use.

Policy TC4 from the Local Plan Alterations 2006 requires that non-retail frontage within the key
frontage areas should not exceed the 30% threshold. Taken from the November 2009 town centre
survey, Ongar Town Centre stands at approximately 53% non-retail; as such it has already
excessively breached this limit. Should the proposed change of use take place, this would result in
a further increase and also the loss of a double frontage retail unit.

Adjoining shop premises No. 162 is a non-retail unit trading as a restaurant A3 use. The proposal
will therefore result in three adjacent non-retail units, which in addition fails to meet with policy TC4

(ii).

Consideration has been given to the proposed trading hours which suggest the opening times will
be from 9.30 am until 5.30pm; this will promote the day time use of the unit. However, the loss of
this double retail frontage in the key frontage will harm the long term future viability and vitality of
the town centre.

Whilst the proposed use is innovative and would add benefit to the range of uses within the town
centre, the loss of the double unit and its failure to comply with policy TC4 clearly indicates this
proposal would cause harm to the vitality and viability of the Ongar town centre. The aim of
policies TC1 and TC4 is of critical importance and since the limit on the proportion of non-retail
frontage within the town centre has already been exceeded, the policies are in danger of being
devalued. The loss of 2 retail units that would arise if this proposal is allowed would further

Page 80



undermine the qualities that make the town centre attractive to shoppers to the detriment of the
whole centre. Consequently, the proposal also threatens its place in the strategic hierarchy
contrary to policy TC1 and TC4.

Conservation and Listed Building

The building is listed and is also within a Conservation Area. The Conservation officer does not
wish to object because there will be no material harm to the fabric of the listed building nor will the
proposed use be detrimental on this part of the conservation area.

Neighbour Amenity

Policy DBE9 requires new development should not result in loss of amenity to neighbouring
occupiers in relation to smell, noise or other disturbance.

There are residential units above the shop unit and the occupiers of No. 154 object on grounds of
potential interference with future access to their property. Whilst this has been noted, it is
considered the use of this double frontage unit as a mixed use children’s soft play area and coffee
shop should not result in any interference with the access to their property. Subject to a limitation
on the hours of use it will also not result in any excessive increase in noise or disturbance that will
harm neighbouring occupier amenity.

The proposal would therefore be acceptable in terms of neighbouring occupier's amenity.
Conclusion:

Whilst the proposed use is innovative, there is no supporting information to demonstrate what
attempts have been made to actively market and let the premises as a retail unit. In addition, the
non-retail use in the key frontage has exceeded the thresholds in policy TC4 and the adjacent site
to the north is presently non-retail use. As such the further loss of another 2 retail units will result in
cumulative harm to the viability and vitality of the town centre. Such harm threatens the place of
Ongar Town Centre in the strategic hierarchy.

In light of the above appraisal, this proposal fails to meet with local plan policies and as such the
recommendation is for refusal.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Paula Onyia
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 81



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

bby Rose Court

] —Lr
|

PH

arter: L

George House

Brook Lodge

_
[3e)
] =

= [ 1}
| \ ]
— i /
5% I |
| 1
| i
s t  Ongar Castle |
\ |
\ (site of) \
\ \
\ \
\
=
{ \
190
> Bank
o
8
L
2
182 Manor
J [Square
e 0
Bailey )
= _'-l House
174 >
> H
3 ; ! Manor House The Coach House
g ® —
R % =
: |
— I\
@ 4 -~
® 1 \\ ‘\ - \\\
~~~~~~~ g AN .
-] M
Wren'™ ;o=
4 Wren Il
\ St Mattin's VAN
150 Hal i \\ e
-
el [ Mews e N 7
o N /
S 3 FS Nl
w
SUCAN
crured
=
\

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Iltem 8
Number:
Application Number: | EPF/1254/11

Site Name: 156-158 High Street, Ongar
CM5 9JJ
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 82



Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/1287/11
SITE ADDRESS: Melonese
Willow Bank Farm
School Lane
High Laver
Ongar
Essex
CM5 OEE
PARISH: Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers
WARD: Moreton and Fyfield
APPLICANT: Ms Kate Morris
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Change of use of part of land to residential curtilage and
conversion, alteration and enlargement of existing stable
block to provide gym, study and games room.
RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=529109

CONDITIONS
1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match in material,
colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing building.

3 The proposed conversion shall only be used for purposes incidental to the

enjoyment of the main dwellinghouse known as Melonese/Willow Bank Farm and
not for any other purpose.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Description of Proposal:

Change of use of part of land to residential curtilage and conversion, alteration and enlargement of
existing stable block to provide a gym, study and games room. The proposal seeks the
conversion of the existing 6 stall stable block to an outbuilding within the residential curtilage of
Melonese. The proposal involves a small amount of infill extension under the existing roof
overhang and changes to the windows and doors. The change of use of the land is to include the
stable block within the residential curtilage of Melonese.

Page 83




Description of Site:

Melonese is a two storey Grade Il listed detached house with detached garage (which has been
converted for ancillary accommodation) situated in a large plot on the north side of School Lane
within the rural area of High Laver. The stable block is located to the rear of the residential
curtilage and is adjacent to an existing manege. The adjacent land is also in the ownership of the
applicant and is used as a smallholding of approximately 6 acres, predominantly for the keeping of
pigs and chickens. The property is within the Metropolitan Green Belt, but not a Conservation
Area.

Relevant History:

Various Applications the most relevant of which:

EPF/1674/98 — Demolition of piggery, erection of stables and haystore and construction of
manege, access road and hardstandings. Use of land for horsekeeping — App/Con - Part
implemented as the haystore/feed/tack building part of this consent has not been built
EPF/0032/11 - Conversion of existing stable block to residential accommodation as a separate
dwelling — Refused

Policies Applied:

Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations

CP2 - Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment
DBE2 - Effect on Neighbouring Properties

DBE4 — Design in the Green Belt

GB2A — Development within the Green Belt

GB4 — Extensions of Residential Curtilages in the Green Belt
GB7A — Conspicuous Development within the Green Belt

HC12 — Development Affecting the Setting of a Listed Building

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

MORETON, BOBBINGWORTH & THE LAVERS PARISH COUNCIL: Objection —
Overdevelopment of property on Metropolitan Green Belt. The original development planning
application was for stables on agricultural land. Neighbours object

NEIGHBOURS

4 properties were consulted and a site notice erected

WILLOWEFIELD, HIGH LAVER - Objection - reduction in non-residential area, restriction on the
creation of new residential units within the green belt still applies, permission was originally given
for stables only, increased noise levels, a reduction in privacy and quality of life.

4 TILEGATE ROAD - Objection — creation of further residential property, original built for stables
use only, new residential units not normally permitted in the Green Belt, possible requirement for
storage on the site.

THE OLD SCHOOL, SCHOOL LANE - Objection — similar to earlier conversion of garage,
previous application was for accommodation now only gym/office, exactly the same layout as
previously refused application, development within the Metropolitan Green Belt, originally built as
stables, would result in three residential properties, potential need for further storage

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the following:

Page 84



= Impact on neighbouring amenity

» Impact on the Green Belt

= Design

= |mpact on the Setting of the Listed Building
Neighbouring Amenity:

The proposal is approximately 8m from the shared boundary with The Old School, (which is the
nearest neighbour) and approximately 30m from The Old School building itself. The proposed
changes to the stable block are not considered to have a detrimental impact on neighbouring
amenity in this location given the minor changes to the building and distance from the nearest
neighbour.

Impact on the Green Belt:

The building is in situ and this proposal is for its change of use, alteration and extension. Although
the building is to be extended this is within the existing roof overhang of the stables and therefore
is not considered to result in any detrimental impact on the character or openness of the Green
Belt in this location.

The extension of the residential curtilage to include the stable building is not considered out of
keeping with the surrounding areas where there are several garden plots of a similar depth to that
proposed. The change of use of this part of the land is not considered to have an adverse effect
upon the open character of the surrounding landscape.

Although the planning permission for the stables includes a condition requiring the stables only be
used by the occupants of Melonese and not for any commercial use, this condition was specific to
the stable proposal at the time and clearly would not be suited for this proposed change of use.
The stables were built by the former owner of the property and have not been used as stables by
the current owner.

A condition can be added to any permission granted to ensure that the building can only be used
for purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the main dwellinghouse (e.g. gym, study and games
room) to prevent the stables being used as bedroom accommodation. This will prevent any future
conversion of the building into a separate dwelling in the Green Belt which would be considered
inappropriate as per the recent refusal of consent for such use under planning reference
EPF/0032/11.

Design:

The general shape and design of the stables remains the same although there are alterations to
the existing and the provision of new window/door openings which do result in a more domestic
appearance. However, this proposal is for the conversion of the stables to a more domestic use
and therefore the design is considered to be generally acceptable.

Impact on the Setting of the Listed Building

The proposal is some 40m from the listed building and is therefore not considered to have a
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the listed building. The Council’s
Conservation Officer has no objection to the proposal subject to matching materials being used.
Conclusion:

The proposal results in only minor changes to the existing stable building, and is not considered to
harm neighbouring amenity, the setting of the listed building or the green belt in this location.

Page 85



Although a similar scheme for a separate dwelling has recently been refused, this application is for
conversion to a gym, study and games room and can be conditioned to ensure that the uses
remain incidental to the enjoyment of the main dwellinghouse. Approval is therefore
recommended.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Marie-Claire Tovey
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564371

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 86



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

N\ / {

Q

______________
_____________

School

Q (disused)

Melonese

Letter Box

1.22m RH

Hall Farm

Lol
e
S

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Iltem 9
Number:
Application Number: | EPF/1287/11

Site Name: Melonese, Willow Bank Farm
School Lane, High Laver, CM5 OEE
Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 87




Report Item No: 10

APPLICATION No: EPF/1381/11

SITE ADDRESS: Bantham And Ongar Bowls Club
Weald Bridge Road
North Weald Bassett

Epping

Essex

CM16 6GP
PARISH: North Weald Bassett
WARD: North Weald Bassett
APPLICANT: Bantham & Ongar Bowls Club

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Removal of condition 5 of EPF/1563/99 to allow the Bowls
Club to be used for other sporting activities (Construction of
new bowls club including details of new clubhouse, bowling
green access road, car park and siting of temporary
clubhouse)

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=529470

CONDITIONS

1 The premises shall be used solely for purposes within Use Class D2 (e) and for no
other purpose (including any other purpose in Use Class D2 of the Schedule to the
Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended), or in any
provision equivalent to that Class in any Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting
that Order.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions) and
as it is for a form of development that can not be approved at Officer level if there are more than
two expressions of objection to the proposal. (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A(f) of the
Council’s Delegated functions).

Description of Proposal:

Consent is being sought for the removal of condition 5 of planning permission EPF/1563/99 for the
construction of new bowls club including details of new clubhouse, bowling green, access road,
car park and siting of temporary clubhouse. This condition reads:

The proposed permanent clubhouse hereby approved shall only be used in

connection with the use of the site for bowling and shall not be used for any other
function whatsoever.

Page 88




Reason: The use of this building for any other function may be prejudicial to local
amenities.

The application proposes that this condition be removed to allow for the clubhouse to be used for
other uses within Use Class D2. Whilst primarily this would allow for other sporting activities to
take place, D2 use also covers leisure and recreational activities such as cinemas, music halls,
dance halls, etc.

Description of Site:

The application site is a bowls club located on the eastern side of Weald Bridge Road. The site
contains a clubhouse, car park and bowling green. To the west of the site is a large residential
area, with Hows Mead located almost directly opposite the access to the site, and to the north,
east and south are open fields. The site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Relevant History:

EPF/1563/99 - Construction of new bowls club including details of new clubhouse, bowling green
access road, car park and siting of temporary clubhouse — approved/conditions 05/04/00
EPF/1523/10 - Change of use of site to Bowls Club and other Class D1 and D2 uses including
other indoor and outdoor recreational activities and leisure uses. Hire of club house for
entertainment and social activities for local community. Hire of club house for meetings and
conferences for local community activities and small scale medical centre — withdrawn 11/01/11

Policies Applied:

GB2A — Development in the Green Belt

DBES9 - Loss of amenity

RP5A — Adverse environmental impacts

RST1 — Recreational, sporting and tourist facilities
RST22 — Potentially intrusive activities

ST4 — Road safety

Summary of Representations:

42 neighbouring properties were consulted and a Site Notice displayed on site.

PARISH COUNCIL - Object as this would be detrimental to the amenities of adjacent residents by
way of noise, increased vehicle movements and increased use of the site.

27 WEALD BRIDGE ROAD - Object due to the impact on surrounding residents.

29 WEALD BRIDGE ROAD - Object as this will become a nightclub and result in anti-social
behaviour.

37 WEALD BRIDGE ROAD - Object due to the impact on surrounding residents.

45 WEALDBRIDGE ROAD — Object due to the increase in noise and movement and due to
increased traffic.

55 WEALD BRIDGE ROAD - Object due to increased noise and traffic and impact on surrounding
residents.

Page 89



73 WEALD BRIDGE ROAD - Object as there is no requirement for additional premises for ‘halls’
and ‘sports facilities’.

7 HOWS MEAD — Object due to the impact on surrounding residents and due to increased traffic
and parking issues.

47 WEALD BRIDGE ROAD — Concerned that there may be increased noise after 10pm.
4 HOWS MEAD - No objection

Issues and Considerations:

This condition appears to have been imposed as the original application (EPF/1563/99) for the site
put forth an argument that there was a need in the area for a bowling club. The Officer’s report on
that application states “it is clear from correspondence received regarding the previous submission
and with this application that there is a demand locally for a bowling club particularly in the light of
the closure of a number of long standing clubs in the area. The application is supported by the
Council’s Recreational Services and it can be seen also from third party consultations that local
support does exist for this proposar.

There appears to be some confusion from local residents as to the extent of this application or
what may result from the proposal. There are several mentions of nightclubs, discos and other late
night venues being run from the site, as well as other alternative uses. The application simply
proposes the removal of the condition restricting the clubhouse to bowls use only, however would
not allow for any use outside of Use Class D2 (such as a nightclub or drinking establishment). This
confusion has not been helped by the letter sent to local residents by the Bowls Club, which read
“we hope the type of events we wish to allow our clubhouse to be used for will be an asset to the
local community, for example adult educational classes, meetings, small conferences’. These
uses actually fall within Use Class D1 and the applicant has been informed that such uses would
not be permissible if this application were approved since it does not propose any use within Use
Class D1.

Notwithstanding the confusion of the applicants and neighbouring residents, the removal of this
condition would allow for alternative leisure uses such as concert and music halls and dance halls,
which could impact on the amenities of neighbouring residents. However, regardless of the
outcome of this application, the site would still be restricted by all other conditions on planning
permission EPF/1563/99, which include:

6. No amplified music shall be played within the clubhouse premises at any
time.
7. No form of amplified sound shall be permitted on the site either within or

outside any building at any time.

8. No form of external lighting shall be erected on site without the submission of
a detailed scheme and such scheme shall be agreed in writing with the LPA prior to
any works in connection with lighting commencing.

15. The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers/members outside
the hours of 10am to 11pm, seven days a week.

These restrictions would still apply to any other uses on the site, and would effectively protect
against the site being used as a dance hall, etc. However, due to the concerns of neighbours it is
possible as part of this application to vary the other conditions on planning permission
EPF/1563/99, or impose a new condition, restricting the type of D2 use that could take place.

Page 90



Members are advised Use Class D2 is split into separate subcategories (i.e. a concert hall is D2
(b) and a dance hall is D2 (d)). Indoor and outdoor sports and recreation (excluding those involving
motorised vehicles and firearms, which are not included in any Use Class) falls within category D2

(€).

Given that outdoor sport and recreation does not constitute inappropriate development within the
Green Belt, and sporting use currently takes place on the site, it is not considered that allowing
alternative sports to take place within the clubhouse would be any more detrimental to the Green
Belt or surrounding area than just a Bowls use.

Concern has been raised by local residents about increased traffic movements and parking
provision. As previously stated, the current use of the site is for sporting activities (albeit restricted
to Bowls use) and, whilst currently not intensely utilised, the use of the site for other sporting
activities would not cause any detrimental increase in traffic. There is adequate parking available
on site to cater for the clubhouse and the parking requirements for a general sports use would not
be any different from a pure Bowls use.

Conclusion:

Whilst it is considered that an unrestricted D2 use on this site could result in a detrimental impact
on surrounding residents due to noise and other disturbance/nuisance, a restrictive condition
stating that the site could only be used for D2 (e) use and for no other purposes, including any
other uses within Class D2, would ensure that the site is not utilised for any other, more harmful,
uses. Furthermore, the original decision contains other restrictive conditions controlling amplified
music, lighting and opening times, which would still be enforceable in respect of any alternative
uses resulting from this application. As such the application is recommended for approval, subject
to the above condition.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qgov.uk

Page 91



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

/ Bantham and Ongar

Reynkyns Wood

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Iltem 10
Number:
Application Number: | EPF/1381/11

Site Name: Bantham And Ongar Bowls Club, Weald Bridge
Road, North Weald Bassett, CM16 6GP
Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 92




Report Item No: 11

APPLICATION No: EPF/1423/11
SITE ADDRESS: Darlingtons
Coppice Row
Theydon Bois
Essex
CM16 7ES
PARISH: Theydon Bois
WARD: Theydon Bois
APPLICANT: Mr M Darlington

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Demolition of existing garage and construction of two storey
block to provide seven, two bed and one, one bed
apartment(s) with ground floor patios area and first floor
balconies. Associated works involve closure of existing
vehicular access, formation of new vehicular access with
sliding electronic gates and new pedestrian access. Provision
of 13 car parking spaces, turning area, drying area, bin store,
bike store, communal open space and landscaping.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=529631

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: 853/1, 853.2, 853.3, 853/4 and amended plan No. 853/5A.

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with such approved details.

4 No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

5 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,

until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been

Page 93




submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters,
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11",
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition
that follows]

Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out.
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that
follows]

Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless

Page 94



10

11

12

13

otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that
follows]

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report
(referred to in PPS23 as a Validation Report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of
the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary
monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes
relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall
be implemented.

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above
condition.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises,
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor
slabs of buildings, roadways and access ways and landscaped areas. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

Prior to first occupation of the proposed development, the applicant shall submit a
Travel Information and Marketing Scheme for sustainable transport for approval in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details as approved shall be
implemented prior to occupation.

Page 95



14 Prior to commencement details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority securing works to the adjacent highway to include the
provision of two dropped kerb crossing points with tactile paving in Orchard Drive at
its junction with Coppice Row. The approved details shall then be implemented prior
to first occupation of the development.

15 No development shall take place until details have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of raised kerbs to current
Essex County Council specification for the east (Stop ID: THYBOIS2) and west
(Stop ID: 21003007) bound bus stops on Coppice Row to the west of the site.

16 Prior to first occupation of the development the redundant existing vehicular
crossovers on Orchard Drive and Coppice Row shall be suitably and permanently
closed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority, incorporating the
reinstatement to full height of the highway verge/footway and kerbing.

17 The proposed development shall not be occupied until such time as the vehicle
parking area indicated on the approved plans, including any parking spaces for the
mobility impaired, has been hard surfaced, sealed and marked out in parking bays.
The vehicle parking area shall be retained in this form at all times. The vehicle
parking shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles that are
related to the use of the development unless otherwise agreed with the Local
Planning Authority.

18 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational
and shall be retained at all times.

19 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

20 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of the
boundary treatment shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. These works shall be carried out as approved before first

occupation.

21 No occupation shall take place until details of external lighting has been submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented as
approved.

Subject to the completion of a planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 within 9 months requiring a financial contribution of £70,000 for
community benefit provision to improve the Theydon Bois Community Youth Centre.

This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development of 5

dwellings or more and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (d) of
the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Page 96



Description of Proposal:

Consent is being sought for the demolition of the existing garage workshop and erection of a new
building comprising of a two storey block to provide seven, two bed and one, one bed apartment(s)
with ground floor patio areas and first floor balconies.

Associated works involve closure of existing vehicular access, formation of new vehicular access
with sliding electronic gates and new pedestrian access.

The proposed building would be two storeys high with a roughly ‘“T’-shaped plan footprint. It would
reach a maximum width of 28.0 metres running parallel to Coppice Row and maximum depth of
29.6 metres along Orchard Drive. The building would have a pitched roof with a pitched front
projection over bay windows to a maximum height of 8.0 metres.

The building will be aligned with No. 4 Orchard Drive to the north and will be set 1.8 metres from
this boundary. To its eastern boundary, the building will be aligned with the adjacent residential
property, ‘Lamorna’ and will be sited 1.0 metre from this boundary.

The building would be served by thirteen off-street parking spaces, seven of which would be
located within the grounds accessed via an undercroft. The ground floor would provide 3; two bed
and 1, one bed and the first floor level will provide 3, 2 bed apartments. A bin store and a separate
cycle storage area will also be provided within the rearwards part of the grounds.

There is a wide belt of landscaped area proposed to the front of the site that will front Coppice
Row with small pockets of amenity space towards the northern boundary of the site for the private
use of future residents.

Description of Site:

The site is approximately 0.16 hectare and lies within the rural village settlement of Theydon Bois.

It is located east of Orchard Drive and rounds onto the northern corner with Coppice Row. The site
accommodates a detached two storey building with a flat roof used as a garage, service repair and
workshop building. The site is entirely hard surfaced and these areas are used for the storage and
sale of motor vehicles. The ground level is mostly flat with little planting.

Immediately adjacent to the site are surrounding residential properties. To the north is a detached
bungalow No. 4 Orchard Drive, a detached bungalow ‘Lamorna’ lies to its eastern boundary and a
two-storey detached property ‘Baldocks’ and a bungalow ‘Wain’ lies to the west across the
roadway of Orchard Drive. The property overlooks open space, Theydon Green, to its southern
boundary beyond the roadway of Coppice Row.

Relevant History:

EPF/0046/11 - Redevelopment involving demolition of existing garage and replacement with two
storey residential building consisting of six flats. Withdrawn

Policies Applied:

CP1 — Achieving sustainable development objectives

CP2 - Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
CP3 — New development

CP5 — Sustainable building

CP6 — Achieving sustainable urban development patterns
CP7 — Urban form and quality

E4A — Protection of employment sites

Page 97



E4B — Alternative uses for employment sites
H1A — Housing provision

H2A — Previously developed land

H3A — Housing density

H4A — Dwelling mix

DBE1 — Design of new buildings

DBE2 — Effect on neighbouring properties
DBE3 — Design in urban areas

DBES5 - Design and layout of new development
DBE6 — Car parking in new developments
DBES8 — Private amenity space

DBES9 - Loss of amenity

LL11 — Landscaping schemes

ST1 — Location of development

ST2 — Accessibility of development

ST4 — Road safety

ST6 — Vehicle parking

1A — Planning obligations

Summary of Representations:

14 neighbours were consulted and a Site Notice displayed on the 27 July 2011. The responses
received are summarised as follows:

GREENHEDGES, COPPICE ROW. Does not object to the proposed development except the
aspect facing onto Orchard Drive. The proposed first floor balcony will look into their property and
overlook patio doors, which will create a loss of privacy. Landscaping will not be adequate and as
a compromise suggest the plans are changed into a Juliet balcony and more soft screening is
introduced.

FOREST GLEN, COPPICE ROW. Objects on grounds that the proposal will affect their level of
privacy as a result of the first floor windows. It will also result in overlooking and loss of value to
their property. It will be an advantage to continue to use it as a garage because it offers a needed
service.

LAMORNA, COPPICE ROW. Does not object in principle to the site being developed however,
because the site is fairly open at present the new building proposed will be imposing as a result of
its overall height in relation to their bungalow and it is only 1.0 metre from their boundary. It will
also result in loss of sunlight to their north facing garden.

61 WOODLAND WAY. Does not object but comments whilst the provision of a modest residential
development would be welcome on this site, the proposal represents over development of this
essentially rural village site. This is exampled by the tightness of the rear 'yard' parking - a 2.9m
width is indicated for one parking space with a 2.6m access clearance, and other spaces are
described as 2.9m wide but measured to the centre of a structural column. There is an excessive
amount of overhanging development intended to squeeze the last possible drop of saleable floor
space out of the development. There is a dependency on external green space to service the open
space requirements of the intended occupants.

CONSERVATORS OF EPPING FOREST Objects — The site lies opposite Theydon Greens which
are part of Epping Forest. The site is in a very prominent position and is highly visible when viewed
from across the Theydon Greens. The southern block does broadly follow the established building
line on Coppice Row but at its most southerly point it appears to be approximately 2.0 metres
further forward than the adjacent property 'Lamorna’. This proposed mass of building closer to
Coppice Row will be visually intrusive when viewed from across Theydon Greens towards Piercing

Page 98



Hill as the majority of buildings along this stretch are low level buildings. This would harm the
character and appearance of the area.

CLLR JANET WHITEHOUSE - Concerned that this development proposes to be a gated
development. The houses on each side of it are open, often with no front gate so this will look
quite out of character. To have gated developments gives an impression of the need to protect
from crime. Theydon Bois is a low crime area. The flats on the old Wood and Krailing site are
gated but this wasn’t necessary and has the effect of cutting those households off from some of
the community’s life. It is very difficult to get into the development to deliver community newsletters
so they don’t hear of all that is going on. There are only a couple of accessible letter boxes. The
position of letter boxes is important! No doubt planning officers are having discussions with the
developer and | hope you can persuade them to keep the site open. By the time the plans come to
committee such details can’t be addressed. | would like planning officers to question the need for
gates when plans are presented. The more gates that appear in Epping Forest the more people
will feel the need to have them in new applications. There are some areas where they may be
justified but if most properties become gated | think this will have an impact on the perception of
the area regarding crime and will also affect the feeling community togetherness.

THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL; No objection subject to the following conditions:

1. Agreeing a Planning Gain for the community of £70,000. The monies to be used to extend
the Youth Centre purchased by the Parish Council and currently being run by a Charity,
Theydon Bois Community and Youth Trust, set up by the Parish Council. Any balance to
be used by the Trust to equip the site.

2. Consider conditioning that the balcony on the side elevation facing Orchard Drive is
replaced with a Juliet balcony. Although the Parish Council have no objection on planning
grounds this would reduce any possible concerns regarding overlooking across to the
back gardens of properties in Coppice Row and any loss of amenity to residents in these
properties.

3. All external lighting on the site to be low level down lights to minimise any light pollution as
the village does champion a Dark Skies Policy.

4. All necessary works regarding the decontamination of the site, a former petrol station and
garage works, including the removal/filling of any underground tanks being completed.

5. Final details concerning the materials and finishes to be confirmed with special attention to
the colour of the roof tiles which the Parish Council feel should match neighbouring
properties rather than the grey specified in the plans.

6. Further details of the landscaping scheme to be finalised.

7. The normal conditions restricting the hours of work on the site during construction to be
imposed.

Issues and Considerations:

The applicant sought formal pre-application advice from officers in respect of a similar proposal for
8 flats. In very broad terms, officer’s advice was that in accordance with adopted Local Plan policy
E4A, this is an employment generating site and it should therefore be protected as such. An
alternative community use would be the next preferred use, as required by policy E4B, as an
alternative to employment use. However, it was acknowledged this is an isolated commercial
business site in a predominantly residential area and with sufficient justification, a residential
development may be considered where employment and community needs facilities are not
forthcoming.

Page 99



The key issues therefore raised by the proposal are whether there is proper justification for the
replacement of the garage/ workshop, which provides employment opportunities with a 100%
market housing residential development.

Other main issues would be the consequences with respect to the design of the new building on
the character and appearance of the locality. The appropriateness of the vehicle and pedestrian
access arrangements, on-site parking, private amenity space provision and refuse
storage/collection and also, the consequence of the proposal for the amenities enjoyed by
neighbouring occupiers.

Suitability of site:

The application site is located within the urban area of Theydon Bois, which is one of the larger
built up village within the District and is well served by local services and amenities, and most
importantly it has good public transport links. London Underground station is within a ten minute
walk from the site and there is a bus stop in front of the site. The location of the site within nearby
proximity to these services within the village makes this a prime location for a new residential
development.

Furthermore, given that the site currently contains a large garage and workshop building with
extensive hardstanding area, the site is classified as ‘previously developed land’. PPS 3 and Local
Plan policy H2A encourage the reuse and intensification of use on such sites for new
development. The acceptability of the overall proposal will however be subject to other relevant
policies.

Principle of the Development:

The loss of the garage/ workshop amounts to the loss of an employment generating site, which
should be safeguarded in accordance with policy E4A. The applicant makes the case that the car
dealership business has changed over the years and to remain viable, the trend is now to
concentrate main dealerships together in highly accessible areas with lots of passing trade. Other
similar garages have closed in the district in recent years. And this site is proving now to be no
longer viable.

The statement also argues that because the site is near predominantly residential development for
its present lawful use as an industrial site, it is at odds within its locality. This is because of the
impact of the business on the surrounding area from noise generated by heavy machinery and
tools, customers parking outside on Orchard Drive, car transporters and low loaders causing traffic
hazard in Orchard Drive and Coppice Row and also external light pollution. It goes on to state that
whilst the present owner has shown restraint, a new owner may not be as sympathetic.

The applicant also provides in their statement with supporting information that the site has actively
marketed from January 2009 to February 2010, in excess of the minimum required 12 month
period for sale or let with no sound offer accepted. A number of other companies have also been
approached to purchase the site but they all showed a lack of interest. The conclusion from the
agents is that presently, there is no realistic prospect of renting or selling the site.

However, it remains the case that the site could be redeveloped for an alternative employment
generating use which would ensure the site continued to be used for employment purposes that
would be of benefit to the wider community. The supporting text of policy E4B includes a wide
range of uses which not only meet local needs but uses that can often involve some employment
opportunities. The supporting statement makes a further case that the suggestion of an alternative
business proposal would not be viable because the building in its present form is not suitable for
conversion to satisfy modern business requirements. It would also not be economically viable to
redevelop given the clean up of the site required after 60 years of industrial use.

Page 100



The supporting text contained in E4B suggests affordable housing may also be an appropriate
alternative use of a site or any specific alternative community facility that has been identified.
There is significant identified need for affordable housing in the wider District. The Council’s
Strategic Housing Market Assessment (2010) finds that up to 2026, 70% of future housing in the
District will need to be affordable and, having regard to the Council’s 5 year land supply, there is
virtually no need identified for open market housing within the next 5 years. The applicant is
however, not proposing an affordable housing scheme, again because to do so would be unviable.
Furthermore, for a village with a population greater than 3000, the site does not meet the threshold
for affordable housing requirement of policy HBA in that the site is less than 0.5 hectares in size
and is not providing 15 or more residential units.

The Parish Council, whilst not identifying a need for a community facility at this particular site, have
identified a need for the wider benefit of the local community for the improvement of a local youth
facility. The applicant has stated a willingness to make a level of contribution by way of a
commuted sum to an off-site community improvement scheme. The level offered is £70,000 and it
is officer's assessment that this off-site contribution would both satisfy the requirements of Policies
E4B in this case and be necessary to justify the development.

Design, appearance within the locality:

The proposed development is a two storey building of a relatively moderate scale, height and
mass. It has been designed with articulated fenestration, recessed balconies and projecting bay
windows. It has been designed to reflect the style of neighbouring two storey properties in the
wider area of the locality.

Objections have been received because the development would be conspicuous from the Green
and it is higher than immediate bungalows. However, the overall height of the development will be
8.0 metres high and at this height, it will be similar to the two storey properties in the locality. The
articulation to the facade and roof detailing will also assist in reducing the mass of the building
when seen from the Green. The building will also be sited a minimum 5.0 metres from the roadway
edge fronting onto Coppice Row and will be set further back up to 11.0 metres at the corner as it
rounds onto Orchard Drive. A large area at the front of the site will be provided for substantial soft
landscaping and new trees on its southern boundary would greatly reduce the overall visual impact
of the building.

The current building on site does not have any particularly architectural merit. Its demolition is
supported and the introduction of the proposed two storey building in this location would not be
detrimental to the street scene. It is acceptable in form, style and quality. The overall size, bulk,
height, mass and appearance of the development is acceptable and would result in a visual
improvement over the current site. In summary on this point, whilst there will be clearly a change in
form and appearance at this corner site overlooking the Green, it will not be to the detriment of or
be seen as a conspicuous development when viewed from the open green.

The concerns about the future boundary treatment have been noted. Whilst an open site will be
preferred an enclosed boundary will give the future occupiers of the site in this prominent corner
location a sense of ownership. However, very careful consideration will be given to the future
boundary treatment to ensure the site adopts an open aspect even with a means of enclosure.
This will be controlled by a planning condition that will require details of the boundary treatment.

The detailing and external materials to be used can be controlled by planning conditions to ensure
that the finished building will be in keeping with the locality.

Page 101



Amenity considerations:

The proposed development would replace an existing two storey building with smaller plan
footprint with a two storey building with a wider plan footprint. Neighbouring occupiers have raised
a number of concerns.

The immediate occupiers that abut the site to its northern and eastern boundary have raised
concern because the size of the building is too big when compared with the size of their properties.
Although the property to the north of the site No. 4 Orchard Drive and ‘Lamorna’ to the east are
relatively small scale detached bungalows, the building runs along a parallel length and adopts a
similar depth to theirs. The siting of the building is such that it will be separated a minimum of 1.0
metre from its eastern boundary and 1.7 metres separation gap from its northern boundary. The
combination of single storey elements with lower roof, the overall hipped roof profile of the building
and its low eaves results in a building that will not be at odds with the height of their bungalows.

Overlooking is another issue raised by neighbours and this is an important matter to consider. The
relationship of the proposed building to the immediate neighbouring properties is such that only
part of the rear gardens of 4 Orchard Drive and ‘Lamorna’ will be overlooked. The proposed
development would retain a minimum gap of 2.0 metres from the property ‘Lamorna’ and 5.0
metres from 4 Orchard Drive. Given the distances involved there would not be a detrimental loss
of daylight or sunlight to neighbours’ windows. The minimum distance of the proposed building
from their corresponding side boundaries will be some 16.5 metres; this is acceptable because it
does not cause direct overlooking. In addition, there are no rearwards facing balconies that could
result in the perception of overlooking and no windows proposed on the first floor flank wall
nearest their property that could cause loss of privacy. As such this development will not be
detrimental to their amenity.

The adjacent property ‘Green Hedges’ to the west of the site has also raised concern because of
potential overlooking due to a proposed first floor balcony that fronts onto Orchard Drive. It is the
officer’s opinion that the properties to the west will not be directly overlooked. Notwithstanding, the
proposal has been revised omitting this first floor balcony by altering it into a flat Juliet balcony with
doors which will open inwards. This was done in order to satisfy the neighbour’s concerns.
However, the revised design with a Juliet balcony will also prove to be less of an issue for the
future occupiers of the development.

Due to the above, whilst the erection of a larger two storey building on this site would clearly have
a greater impact on neighbouring residents than the present building, it is considered that the
impact would not be unduly detrimental to neighbouring amenities.

Private amenity space provision:

Local Plan policy DBE8 and the Essex Design Guide expect 25 sq. m. of communal amenity
space for each unit of new accommodation in flatted developments. Private amenity space
provision for this development is in the form of patios at ground floor level and first floor balconies
for the flats that front onto Coppice Row. There is also a communal garden that directly fronts onto
Coppice Row. The site provides acceptable areas of amenity space for the private use for
residents. The density level will also be in line and within the target range of 30-50 dwellings per
hectare, this complies with policy H3A.

Having regard to the accessibility of public open space opposite Coppice Row to the south, the
level of on site amenity provision for the number of units is acceptable and would not warrant a
refusal of planning permission.

The number of apartments proposed for this site is acceptable and would not result in an
overdevelopment of the site.

Page 102



Landscaping:

There is no existing planting within the site to be retained. The development and appearance of
the site will benefit from a new hedgerow and trees are proposed along the Coppice Row
boundary and along Orchard Drive. The Council’'s Tree and Landscaping officer advises that
indicative landscaping shown on the submitted plans is acceptable and can be secured by a
planning condition.

Highway safety and parking provision:

The proposed dwellings would be served by thirteen (13) off-street parking spaces. The Essex
County Council Vehicle Parking Standards requires 2 spaces per 2+ bedroom residential units, 1
space per 1 bedroom residential unit and 2 visitor parking spaces, which equates to 17 parking
spaces. However, the parking standards also states that “a lower provision of vehicle parking may
be appropriate in urban areas (including town centre locations) where there is good access to
alternative forms of transport and existing car parking facilities”.

Given the sustainable town centre location of the site within walking distance of Theydon Bois
underground station, local bus routes and that it is also well served by local shops and facilities, it
is considered that thirteen off-street parking spaces would be acceptable in this instance.

Pedestrian access will be from the eastern corner of the block off Coppice Row with a second
entrance leading off from Orchard Drive, and vehicle access will be from Orchard Drive. There is
adequate manoeuvring space to allow for vehicles to enter and leave the site in forward gear. It is
considered that the proposal would not be detrimental to highway safety or the free flow of traffic
on this section of Orchard Drive.

It is appropriate to secure dropped kerbs in Orchard Drive at its junction with Coppice Row and
also provision of raised kerbs for the east and west bound bus stops. This matter can be resolved
by a suitable planning condition. The County Council Highways Officer does not wish to raise any
objection subject to appropriate conditions.

Land drainage

The site lies within an EFDC flood risk assessment zone. The development is of a size where it is
necessary to avoid generating additional runoff and to improve existing surface water runoff. A
Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) is therefore required. The land drainage officer does not wish to
raise an objection to this proposal subject to the addition of a land drainage condition to prevent
the additional surface water runoff. This matter can be resolved by a suitable planning condition.

Waste management — refuse storage and collection

The size of the refuse and recycling bin storage is acceptable for the development. Refuse would
however be stored within the building and brought to a collection point at the site boundary with
Orchard Drive when it is due to be collected. Operationally, it would be more convenient for the
refuse and recycling collection if the bin area is relocated near the main entrance gate because the
proposal relies on waste being moved from a storage area to a waste collection point.
Notwithstanding this, subject to the waste actually being placed in the collection area there would
be no difficulty in collecting it and the arrangements proposed are acceptable.

Land contamination

The site has been identified as potentially contaminated. An appropriate land contamination
assessment has not been provided with this application. The land contamination officer comments

Page 103



that prior to any works commencing, a phased contaminated land investigation should be
undertaken. This can be secured by a planning condition that would require an investigation to be
carried out in a phased manner should this application be approved.

Security

There is a proposed vehicular gate into the parking area which is not unreasonable and a small
pedestrian gate would still allow post workers access, although this is not a planning matter. The
fact that this development will have a gate does not set a precedent for other houses in the area to
follow. It would be unreasonable to state that the gates are removed.

Conclusion:

The loss of the site for employment use or a development for affordable housing is remedied by
the applicant’s agreement to make a contribution of £70,000 for the improvement of Theydon Bois
Community Youth Centre, a local community benefit. Works would also need to be carried out to
the highway by the developer. These contributions can be sought by way of a unilateral agreement
and appropriate planning conditions sought for highway improvement. The applicant’s written
agreement to these heads of terms has been sought but was not available in time for the deadline
for reports to this agenda. The principle of the development of the site for an open market
residential development on this basis is acceptable.

Whilst there would be some impact on neighbouring amenities, these are not considered so
excessive as to justify refusing planning permission. The town centre location of the site justifies
providing less than the required amenity space and parking provision. The introduction of
landscaping would be an improvement on the existing situation. The overall design of the building
because of the attention to its siting, scale, mass and detailed design is considered acceptable
within the street scene.

The arrangements for facilitating the collection of refuse are acceptable. The proposal would not
cause harm to the amenities of neighbours sufficient to justify withholding consent.

Accordingly, the proposal complies with adopted planning policy and it is recommended that
conditional planning permission be granted following the completion of a unilateral agreement in
respect of the matters referred to above.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Paula Onyia
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 104



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

T vad

Theydon Green

The material contained in this plot has been

reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map Agenda Item 1"

with the permission of the Controller of Her Number:

Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. . . R

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Appllcatlon Number: EPF/1423/11

Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil " " "

proceedings. Site Name: Darlingtons, Coppice Row
Theydon Bois, CM16 7ES

EFDC licence No.100018534 Scale of Plot 71 2y5 0 ’

Page 105



Report Item No: 12

APPLICATION No: EPF/1437/11
SITE ADDRESS: 40 Forest Drive
Theydon Bois
Essex
CM16 7TEZ
PARISH: Theydon Bois
WARD: Theydon Bois
APPLICANT: Mr James Philliips
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Side, front and rear extensions. Rear dormer addition.
RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:

http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=529672

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall

match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Description of Proposal:

Permission is sought for front, side and rear extensions to the existing bungalow and construction
of a rearwards facing dormer in the roof. To allow this extension to be built, the detached side
garage/ store building will be demolished.

The ground floor will project rearwards up to a depth of 3.0 metres and 10.7 metres across. This
will wrap around the southern corner of the building in an ‘L’ plan shape 3.6 metres wide and 16.5
metres along its flank. The pitch roof of the building will widen into a crown roof adopting a similar
height of 7.4 metres. It will not be any higher and, although wider, its eaves height will match the
existing building at 2.5 metres.

The external finish will be render with a matching tiled roof.

Description of Site:

The subject site is situated to the south-east of Forest Drive in Theydon Bois. The site currently
accommodates a detached bungalow dwelling of standard red brick construction with a brown tiled

Page 106




roof. Adjacent buildings to the plot are similarly styled 1930s bungalows and the property is one of
a group of six bungalows aligned to the eastern side of the street, beyond which are two-storey
dwellings.

The property is in a village setting and the neighbouring residential buildings within the vicinity of
the site are made up of detached bungalows, one and a half storey buildings and two storey
dwellings.

The ground level is relatively flat at the front with a gradual slope rearward to the eastern
boundary. There are some small trees to the rear of the site, none of which are protected. There is
hardstanding to the front of the site for parking a minimum of three cars.

Relevant History:

EPR/0205/50 — Erection of domestic garage. Approved

EPF/0250/10 — Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of replacement bungalow. Refused.
Appeal against the refusal dismissed.

EPF/0888/10 - Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of replacement bungalow. (Revised
application) Refused. Appeal against the refusal dismissed

Policies Applied:

East of England Plan

ENV7 — Quality in the Built Environment

Adopted Local Plan Polices:

CP2 — Protecting the quality of the built environment
DBE 9 — Neighbour Amenity
DBE10 — Design/appearance

Summary of Representations

From the 17 neighbours consulted during the course of this application, the following four (4)
letters of representation were received and the comments therein are summarised as follows:

36, 38, 44, FOREST DRIVE and 7 WOODLAND WAY Object on the following grounds:

In view of the ‘draft’ village design statement and the comments / decision made by the Planning
Inspectorate, there are no significant changes to the previous proposals. The building is out of
keeping with present bungalows. Proposals will change the building into a house from a bungalow.
It will also result in loss of privacy and overlooking of neighbouring properties. The current
proposal does not create or reinforce the local distinctiveness neither does it complement the
distinctive character of the local area. The roofscape will change the appearance of the bungalow
to the point where all of the original character and distinctiveness will be lost.

THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL — Objection
This proposal does not meet the key concerns of the Planning Inspector and accordingly we
consider that our original concerns and those expressed by the Planning Inspector have not been

met. We would remind you that the previous applications (EPF/0888/10 and EPF/0250/10 were
refused on appeal on the grounds that the proposals would ‘harm the character and appearance of

Page 107



the area’. The existing dwelling is positioned in the centre of a row of seven distinctive bungalows,
five of which were originally identical and which have undergone only minor alterations since their
original construction.

In dismissing the Appeals, the Planning Inspector was absolutely clear as to what he viewed as
the distinctive nature of this row of bungalows. In paragraph 8 of his Report as to the Reasons for
the refusal of the Appeals, the Inspector stated ‘The combination of their relatively narrow plan
form, asymmetry, steeply pitched roofs, lowered eaves, bay windows and side and front
projections topped with half-timbered gables gives them a noticeably more perky character than
that of the semi-detached houses which dominate the rest of the street.’................ In contrast,
either proposal would have a wider plan form, a symmetrical facade, a more shallowly pitched
roof, higher eaves, flush windows, unbroken flanks and two front projections topped with hips. In
combination, these features would give them a character more stolid than that of most of
the street...... ’._Further, in paragraph 10 the Inspector stated that ‘....both appeal proposals
would have so little in common with their immediate neighbours that they would fail to show the
respect for their setting required by Policy DBE1 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan. The
character of either appeal proposal, so much more stolid than their neighbours on either
side, or the rest of the street, would dilute, and so harm, the lively character which the
group presently establishes. They would fail to complement the distinctive character of the
local area as required by Policy ENV7 of the East of England Plan and would fail to respond
to their context or to create or reinforce local distinctiveness in the way sought by
Government policy as set out in paragraph 36 of Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering
Sustainable Development.

We consider that this latest proposal would also have the effect of harming the character and
appearance of the area; it does not respect the character and distinctiveness of the immediately
adjacent properties and would be detrimental to the street scene. The appearance of the proposal
remains ‘stolid’ and bulky with a ‘wide plan form’ and roofline which is wholly inconsistent with the
distinctive character of the remainder of the row. For these reasons this application should be
rejected.

Issues and Considerations:

There have been two previous planning applications to demolish the existing bungalow and to
replace this with a new detached building. The two proposals were refused and subsequently
dismissed at appeal. This proposal is to extend rather than replace the existing house. The main
issues are therefore the design and its appearance within the locality and also amenity of
neighbouring occupiers.

Design and appearance

The site forms part of a row of 6 modest sized bungalows located to the eastern side of Forest
Drive. Neighbouring bungalows provide generous setback from the boundaries and the existing
bungalow is narrow and easily accommodated within the site.

Whilst the previous proposals for this site were for a replacement dwelling, because of the
elements of changes to its appearance and design the Inspectors’ findings from the appeals are a
material consideration.

The extension will see a side and rear addition to the property with first floor accommodation. The
plan form has been marginally reduced and the symmetrical fagade has been slightly altered and
because of this, the main changes will be rearwards which cannot easily be seen from the street
and to the building’s southern flank. The height of the building and its eaves height will remain
unchanged although the building will appear wider. The height of the roof has also been lowered.

Page 108



The side dormer is, on balance, acceptable. The height, scale, form and size of the building will
also on balance be in keeping with the other bungalows within the street scene.

When considering the design and appearance, the strong views received from neighbouring
occupiers and the Parish Council have been taken into consideration. The Inspectors’ findings and
the draft village design statement have also been taken into consideration. However, based on the
revised proposals the proposed scheme does not justify a refusal on the basis of its design and
appearance when compared to the other bungalows within this row. The proposal is therefore
acceptable in appearance and will be in keeping within the street scene.

Neighbours amenity

The immediate neighbouring occupiers to the subject site are adjacent plots Nos. 42 and 38 Forest
Drive. The extension will see a 1.0 metre gap retained from the boundary with adjacent site No. 38
and there is no change proposed to the northern flank elevation with the property at No. 42. The
extension provides an acceptable setback from its boundaries. As such there will be no loss of
light or overshadowing of the neighbouring properties.

There is a new kitchen window proposed on the southern flank ground floor and a rear facing first
floor dormer. These additions and modification to the building will not result in loss of privacy nor
overlooking.

The views expressed have been taken into consideration; however the potential harm that could
arise as a result of the new rearwards facing dormer, the depth of the rear extension, width of the
side extension or the new side facing window is very limited. They will not result in excessive
harm to neighbouring occupier’s amenity.

Conclusion
From the appraisal, the proposed extensions to the bungalow are considered acceptable in design
and appearance. The strong views received from neighbours and the Parish Council have been

taken into account in considering all aspects of this proposal but on balance there is no reason to
support a refusal. It is therefore recommended permission is granted with conditions.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Paula Onyia
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk

Page 109



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

Theydon Bo

[ g ¥ SR

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Iltem 12
Number:
Application Number: | EPF/1437/11

Site Name: 40 Forest Drive, Theydon Bois
CM16 7EZ
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 110




Report Item No: 13

APPLICATION No: EPF/1456/11
SITE ADDRESS: Wintry Park Service Station
37 Thornwood Road
Epping
Essex
CM16 6SY
PARISH: Epping
WARD: Epping Lindsey and Thornwood Common
APPLICANT: Mr P Spencer

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Construction of 10 no 2 bed and 2 no 3 bed flats with

associated car parking. (Revised application)

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to S106)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=529736

CONDITIONS

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: EUD P 01, EUD P 05, EUD P 10, EUD P 11 Rev: A, EUD P
12 Rev: A, EUD P 20 Rev: A, EUD P 21 Rev: A, EUD P 30 Rev: A, EUD P 31 Rev:
A, EUD P 32 Rev: A, INS16771-01, INS16771-03C Rev: D, INS 16771 11 Rev: D

No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with such approved details.

No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

No development shall take place until wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for
vehicles leaving the site during construction works have been installed in
accordance with details which shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works

Page 111




10

11

shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to
any variation.

The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the
parking of residents and visitors vehicles.

A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and
associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice
tool. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial completion
of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance with the
management and maintenance plan.

No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters,
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11",
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition
that follows]

Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out.
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The

Page 112



12

13

14

15

completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes,
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that
follows]

Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the
intended use of the land after remediation.

[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that
follows]

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report
(referred to in PPS23 as a Validation Report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of
the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary
monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes
relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall
be implemented.

In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above
condition.

No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:

Page 113



1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors

2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials

3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate

5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction

6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works.

16 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

17 Notwithstanding the submitted plans, prior to commencement of works details of
waste storage shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority and
shall be implemented and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

And subject to the completion, within 6 months, of an agreement under $S106 of the Town &
Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of:

1. Provision of an adequate access road into the car park (including two dropped kerb
crossing points with tactile paving),

2, Closure of the existing access to the north east of the site (including reinstatement of the
kerbing)

3. Provision of two dropped kerb crossing points with tactile paving in Thornwood Road at
its junction with Wood Meads, and

4. Provision of a Travel Information and Marketing Scheme for all future residents.

This application is before this Committee since it is an application for residential development of 5
dwellings or more and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (d) of
the Council’s Delegated Functions), the recommendation differs from the views of the local council
(Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions), and since the
recommendation conflicts with a previous resolution of a Committee (Pursuant to Section CL56,
Schedule A (i) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).

Description of Proposal:

Revised application for the construction of 12 flats, 10 with two bedrooms and 2 with three
bedrooms, with associated car parking, amenity space, etc. The building would be located on the
northern half of the site on the junction of Thornwood Road and the private road to the north of the
site. On the southern half of the site would be a car parking area.

The proposed building would be set back 2m from Thornwood Road at its closest point and would
have a footprint of approximately 410 sq. m. The proposed building would reach a maximum
height of 8.7m compared to the road level of Thornwood Road, although the building would appear
taller towards the rear where the land slopes down.

Page 114



The proposed development would have communal amenity space of approximately 331 sgq. m.
surrounding the building, and a car park containing 23 parking spaces accessed from a widened
vehicle access to replace the existing access to the site.

Description of Site:

The subject site is located on the western side of Thornwood Road approximately 100 metres
north of Woodmeads on the fringe of Epping. The site is not within the Metropolitan Green Belt,
however the Green Belt boundary runs along the northern edge.

The site itself is mainly regular in shape and has a moderate slope that falls from the front of the
property towards the rear. The overall size of the site is approximately 1500 square metres. The
site is currently vacant, although it has recently had cars, vans and caravans parked on it and
there is an ongoing Planning Enforcement investigation into its use as a Hand Car Wash. The site
was previously used as a service station, which comprised of a single storey building to the
northern part of the site and a canopy to refuel beneath.

Currently located on the boundaries of the site are timber paling and wire fences varying in height.
There is a small tree located towards the south eastern corner of the site and there are some
mature trees located on the boundaries of adjoining properties.

Located to the south and west of the site there are a mixture of buildings that vary in scale, form
and size ranging from detached, semi detached and terrace style dwellings. Dwellings located
south of the site have consistent front setbacks from Thornwood Road. Located to the east of the
property on the opposite side of Thornwood Road is part of Epping Forest which is a site of
Special Scientific Interest. The surrounding area to the north and east of the site are located within
the Metropolitan Green Belt.

Relevant History:

There have been a number of planning applications submitted to Council over the years however
the most relevant applications in relation to the proposed development are as follows:

EPF/2032/06 — Construction of 11 no. two bedroom, 2 no. three bedroom and 1 no. four bedroom
dwellings — refused 14/12/06

EPF/0860/08 — Construction of 13 no. two bedroom flats and 1 no. three bedroom flats — refused
08/01/09 (appeal dismissed 30/11/09 on the basis of harm to the living conditions of 27 Thornwood
Road)

EPF/0167/11 — Construction of 10 no 2 bed and 2 no 3 bed flats with associated car parking —
refused 07/04/11 (currently being appealed)

Policies Applied:

CP2 - Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment.
CP3 - New Development

CP4 - Energy conservation

CP5 - Sustainable Building

CP7 - Urban Form and Quality

CP9 - Sustainable Transport

DBE1 - Design of New Buildings

DBE?2 - Effect on Adjoining Properties

DBES3 - Design in Urban Areas

DBES - Private Amenity Space

DBE9 - Loss of Amenity

LL10 - Adequacy of provision for landscape retention.

Page 115



LL11 - Landscaping Schemes

ST1 - Location of development.
ST2 - Accessibility of development.
ST4 - Road safety.

H1A - Housing Provision

H3A - Housing Density

H4A - Dwelling Mix

ST6 - Vehicle Parking.

GB7A - Conspicuous Development
NC1 - SPAs, SACs and SSSis
HCS5 - Epping Forest

Summary of Representations:

32 properties were consulted on this application and a Site Notice displayed on 29/07/11.

EPPING TOWN COUNCIL - Object to this application. It was noted that the developer’s statement
in regard to the height of the proposed building inconsistently measures to the ridge height of the
proposed building but to the top of the chimney height of the adjacent building. Therefore, the
overall effect would still be to put a building on this site of excessive height and mass very close to
the road. It was also noted that the panoramic views had all been taken with the trees in full leaf,
which masks the full effect of this building. The amenity space remains scarcely adequate and the
lack of parking is still likely to be a significant problem in this area where nearby on street parking
is not possible. The overall conclusion on this application is that it is still detrimental to this
gateway area of Epping and harmful to the Green Belt.

CITY OF LONDON - Object as the development would harm the character and appearance of the
surrounding area and the adjacent Green Belt land, and due to the inadequate parking provision.

EPPING SOCIETY — Object. Although the roof line is lower than the earlier application, we

consider the building still to be of excessive height and bulk, overbearing to the adjacent houses
and inappropriate as an approach to the town; the amenity space still remains totally inadequate;
and there is still a lack of sufficient visitor parking in an area where street parking is not available.

1 WOODMEADS — Object as this is overdevelopment and due to the increased pressure this
would have on on-street parking.

29 THORNWOOD ROAD — Object as the overall height and footprint is larger than other buildings
in the area, the impact on neighbouring residents, the parking provision and level of amenity
space, the potential loss of trees

37A THORNWOOD ROAD - Object as the reduction in height makes little difference in reducing
the bulk of the building or overcoming the previous concerns. Namely due to loss of light, loss of
privacy, amenity implications, inadequate car parking provision and highway safety implications,
and due to the potential loss of trees.

92 THE PLAIN, EPPING — Object as the site could only accommodate four houses and due to
highway and traffic concerns.

THORNWOOD ACTION GROUP - Agree with above objection.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues to be addressed regarding the proposed development are as follows:

Page 116



Whether the site is in a sustainable location for this type of development and use.
Whether the design and appearance is acceptable.

Whether there would be any traffic and parking concerns caused by the development.
Whether there would be any effects to the amenities of adjoining properties.

Whether there are any impacts to the openness of the Green Belt.

Whether the landscaping is acceptable.

Whether there are any impacts on the Site of Special Scientific Interest.

The previous application (EPF/0167/11) was refused permission for the following reasons:

The proposed development, due to its height, bulk and massing as a single block, is excessive
in scale in relation to adjacent development and overly prominent in the street scene, in this
sensitive location at the edge of the built up area. It adopts a significance in the street scene
that is inappropriate to its function and presents an inappropriate and out of character entrance
to the historic market town of Epping and fails to demonstrate a sensitive appreciation of its
effect on the adjacent forest landscape. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies CP2,
DBE1, and LL3 of the adopted Local Plan and Local Plan Alterations.

The proposed development fails to make adequate provision for off street parking for both
residents and visitors to the flats in a location where there is limited scope for on street
parking. The proposal is therefore likely to result in indiscriminate parking on adjacent land
and highways to the detriment of the character and amenity of the area. Additionally the gated
entrance and lack of adequate parking space for visitors is likely to result in delays in entering
the site and/ or dangerous reversing movements onto the busy B1393, to the detriment of the
safe and free flow of traffic. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies CP2, ST4 and ST6
of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

This revised application has lowered the highest part of the proposed development by 900mm.
There are no other alterations.

Sustainability:

The previous scheme was not refused on sustainability grounds and, whilst on the edge of the
urban area, the site is within walking distance of Epping Town Centre and is relatively well served
by public transport, which was also referred to by the Planning Inspector on the previous appeal.

Design and appearance:

The previous application ref: EPF/0860/08 was refused due to its height, bulk and overall design
and the impact that this would have on this ‘gateway’ site. The Planning Inspector previously
stated that “while this is an edge of town site that adjoins the Green Belt and the scheme proposes
a density that is substantially in excess of that prevailing in the area | do not see that it creates a
Jarring fusion between town and country”. It was concluded that the development “would provide
an appropriate terminal feature that would clearly mark the edge of the town” and that he did not
find that “the introduction of flats in an area of mainly housing would create an objectionable
change in the character of the built environment’. As such it was previously stated that “there is no
sustainable objection to the development regarding its impact on the character and appearance of
the area’.

The proposed development would have a footprint of 410 sq. m. and would reach a maximum
height of 8.7m. This is just 400mm higher than the ridge height of No’s. 25 & 27 Thornwood Road
with a visual separation of 22m. Whilst the proposal is 1.2m higher than the ridge of No’s. 37a to
47 Thornwood Road (and sits on higher land), there is an 11m separation between the buildings at

Page 117



the closest point (to the single storey cycle store) and 12.5m between the main bulk of the
proposed development and the flank wall of No. 37A.

The development that was dismissed on appeal in 2009 proposed a building of a similar height to
this proposal, however it had a far greater footprint. In the appeal decision the Planning Inspector
stated that “the elevations to (Thornwood Road) and to the forest track pay sufficient regard to the
scale and disposition of adjoining development and provide an acceptable termination to the street
scenes on both frontages”. As such it is not considered that the proposed development would
detrimentally impact on the character and appearance of the area or to this ‘gateway’ location into
the historic town of Epping.

Having regard to the reduced height of the current proposal, together with the findings of the
Planning Inspector in the 2009 appeal on the matter of design and impact on the character and
appearance of the locality, it would not be possible to sustain an objection to the current proposal
on design grounds.

Highway and parking considerations:

The lack of visitor parking provision has continuously been a concern on this site and has always
formed a reason for refusal, however the Planning Inspector did not uphold this reason on the
previous appeal and highlighted that “the site is close to Epping town centre and is reasonably well
served by buses with access to the centre and Epping underground”. For a development of this
scale in a locality not well served by public transport and not near services, the current Essex
County Council Vehicle Parking Standards (2009) requires 24 parking spaces for future residents,
plus 6 visitor spaces, equalling 30 in total. This application proposes 23 spaces in total, 20 of
which would be located beyond a retracting gate (for resident use) and 3 of which would be open
to visitors. Whilst this is less than that required by the Vehicle Parking Standards for a more
isolated site, it is stated within this document that “reductions of the vehicle standard may be
considered if there is development within an urban area that has good links to sustainable
transport’ and that “for main urban areas a reduction to the vehicle parking standard may be
considered, particularly for residential development. Main urban areas are defined as those having
frequent and extensive public transport and cycling and walking links, accessing education,
healthcare, food shopping and employment’.

Given the previous comments by the Planning Inspector and the proximity to public transport
(buses and Epping underground), public footpaths and bridle/cycle paths, Epping schools, St
Margaret’s hospital (and the health services within Epping), and Epping Town Centre, the level of
provision proposed is in accordance with the adopted parking standards which allows for a
reduction in parking provision in location such as this.

Whilst the level of car parking was part of the reason for refusal for the previous application, as
was the potential impact on highway safety on the B1393 (Thornwood Road), Essex County
Council Highway Officers continue to raise no objection to the proposed development. Their
position is subject to conditions and securing the following matters within a legal agreement:

1. Provision of an adequate access road into the car park (including two dropped kerb crossing
points with tactile paving),

2. Closure of the existing access to the north east of the site (including reinstatement of the
kerbing)

3. Provision of two dropped kerb crossing points with tactile paving in Thornwood Road at its
junction with Woodmeads, and

4. Provision of a Travel Information and Marketing Scheme for all future residents.

As such, whilst the previous reason for refusal has not been addressed (in that there are still only
23 parking spaces proposed on the same layout as previously proposed), it remains Officer’s

Page 118



opinion that this level of provision would not be detrimental to highway safety or provide an
unacceptable level of car parking. In the circumstances, Members are advised it would not be
possible to sustain an objection to the proposal on parking grounds.

Housing density and mix:

The proposed development would have a housing density of 80 dwellings per hectare (dph). The
Planning Inspector previously raised no concern regarding the higher density of 93dph, and stated
that whilst “the scheme proposes a density that is substantially in excess of that prevailing in the
area | do not see that it creates a jarring fusion between town and country”. As such, it is
considered that this lower density scheme is equally acceptable. Similarly there is a slightly better
dwelling mix in this scheme than that previously dismissed at appeal in 2009. Accordingly, the
proposal complies with policy H4A.

Residential amenity space:

Policy DBES8 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations states that in respect of
communal amenity space provision, at least 25 sq. m. of usable space for each unit is required.
Given that there are 12 units proposed within the development, a minimum of 300 sq. m. of
communal space is required. Whilst the proposed amenity space generally meets this requirement
(including roof terraces/balconies), it is not all considered particularly ‘usable’ amenity space. Of
particular concern are the relatively thin strips around the front and side of the building, which are
unlikely to be utilised by residents, and that the main amenity area to the rear of the building would
be largely overshadowed by the building and therefore would not receive direct sunlight throughout
the year. Notwithstanding this, the location of the site and proximity of Epping Forest ensures that
public amenity space is readily available for any future occupiers. Members are advised this
matter did not form a reason for refusal on the previously refused application and consequently it
is likely a reason for refusal of this proposal on the basis of poor provision of private amenity space
could not be sustained and would be found unreasonable.

Green Bellt:

In terms of the potential impact on the adjacent Green Belt, the points covered within ‘design and
appearance’ and ‘housing density and mix’ address these concerns.

Site of Special Scientific Interest:

Natural England had no objections to the previous development as it was considered it would not
adversely affect any known protected species and that the atmospheric pollution caused by traffic
generated was too minor to warrant any reason for refusal. This opinion is unchanged.

Landscaping:

All the significant trees on the site are proposed to be retained and incorporated into the landscape
scheme. The submitted information regarding this is considered sufficient and therefore the
development complies with the relevant landscaping policies. However a tree protection condition
and condition requiring further details of hard and soft landscaping are required.

Education contribution:

Essex County Council Educational Services require that a developer contribution be paid prior to
the commencement of works to the sum of £17,915, which has been calculated using the April
2011 cost multipliers.

Page 119



Impacts to adjoining properties:

The previous appeal on this site was dismissed as “the closeness of the proposed southern block
to the flank windows in No. 27, particularly the ground floor window in the main section of the
house, would materially reduce daylight reaching the affected rooms and would appear visually
obtrusive compared with the existing situation”. To address this issue the proposed building would
now be situated 22m from the neighbour’s flank wall (approximately 19.5m from the shared
boundary). This level of set back would overcome any loss of light or visual harm to this
neighbour’s windows. With regards to the neighbouring properties to the west, the Planning
Inspector stated “/ regard that degree of separation as being adequate to prevent any significant
loss of daylight to the flank wall of No. 37a Thornwood Road’.

The scheme refused earlier this year was not refused due to loss of amenity to neighbouring
residents and, as the only change with this revised application relates to a drop in overall ridge
height, the current scheme would similarly not be detrimental to the amenities of surrounding
residents with regards to loss of light, privacy or visual amenity.

Other issues:

The discharge of foul and surface water can be dealt with by imposing a condition on any
permission as well as details of flood risk.

In relation to protecting the amenities of adjoining occupiers during construction of the
development, conditions would be placed on any consent to safeguard amenity during
construction. This would include restricting the hours in which construction can take place and
requiring the implementation of an agreed methodology for controlling dust during construction.

Conclusion:

Having regard to the previous appeal decision, and notwithstanding Members decision to refuse a
similar proposal contrary to Officer advice earlier this year, Officers advice in respect of this
proposal is that the design and appearance of the development is acceptable in terms of its scale,
bulk, siting and massing and it would not cause harm to the Green Belt or to the amenities of
adjoining residents. Whilst the level of vehicle parking provision is less than required by the letter
of the Vehicle Parking Standards, it is in accordance with those standards and there is no
objection from Essex County Council as Highway Authority.

Accordingly, it is recommended this application be approved subject to conditions and to a legal
agreement as detailed at the head of this report.
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following

contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qov.uk

Page 120



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

Wintry Wood

Smallhnldina

Sk

109.

The material contained in this plot has been
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map
with the permission of the Controller of Her
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil
proceedings.

EFDC licence No.100018534

Agenda Iltem 13
Number:
Application Number: | EPF/1456/11

Site Name: Wintry Park Service Station, 37
Thornwood Road, Epping, CM16 6SY
Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 121




Report Item No: 14

APPLICATION No: EPF/1508/11
SITE ADDRESS: 14 Harrison Drive
North Weald
Essex
CM16 6JD
PARISH: North Weald Bassett
WARD: North Weald Bassett
APPLICANT: Mr Darren Hunt

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Erection of a single dwelling attached to 14 Harrison Drive.
(Revised Application)

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions)

Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case:
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AnitelM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS CODE=PL&FOLDER1 REF=529890

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the
approved drawings nos: BRD/10/076/02, BRD/10/076/03, BRD/10/076/04 Rev: A,
BRD/10/076/05 Rev: A, BRD/10/076/06, OS312-11.1 Rev: A, 0OS312-11.2 Rev: A

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,

until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Page 122




5 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to
any variation.

6 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the
parking of residents and visitors vehicles.

This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions) and as
it is for a form of development that can not be approved at Officer level if there are more than two
expressions of objection to the proposal. (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A(f) of the Council’s
Delegated functions).

Description of Proposal:

Revised application for the erection of a single dwelling attached to No. 14 Harrison Drive. The
proposed dwelling would be 5.9m wide and 8.3m deep and would continue the ridged roof on No.
14 at an overall height of 8.3m. The development would involve the subdivision of the front and
rear garden to provide parking and amenity space to serve each individual property, and proposes
the removal of some of the side boundary vegetation.

Description of Site:

The application site is located on the north western end of Harrison Drive, which in this section
contains two pairs of semi-detached dwellings. To the north of the site are the rear elevations and
back gardens of Wheelers Farm Gardens, which are two storey maisonette buildings situated
around a central courtyard. The existing property sits within a larger plot than neighbouring
residents and contains a large front garden/parking area and a single storey attached garage,
which would be removed as part of this proposal. The site is located within the built up area of
North Weald and within a Flood Risk Assessment zone.

Relevant History:

EPF/0606/11 - Erection of a single dwelling attached to no. 14 Harrison Drive — refused 01/06/11
on the following grounds:

1. The proposed new dwelling fails to provide sufficient functional, usable and private
amenity space for the donor and new dwelling, contrary to the aims and objectives of policy
DBES of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

2. The proposed new dwelling would by reason of its bulk and scale in close proximity to
the boundaries of the site, have an unacceptable adverse impact on neighbouring outlook
and amenities, contrary to policy DBE2 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

3. The proposed new dwelling, by reason of its scale and design would appear at odds with

the attached buildings and wider cul-de-sac, contrary to the aims and objectives of policy
DBET1 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.

Page 123



Policies Applied:

CP1 — Achieving sustainable development objectives
CP2 — Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment
DBE1 — Design of new buildings

DBE2 — Effect on neighbouring properties

DBES3 — Design in urban areas

DBEB8 — Private amenity space

DBES9 - Loss of amenity

LL10 — Adequacy of provision for landscape retention
LL11 — Landscaping schemes

ST1 — Location of development

ST4 — Road safety

ST6 — Vehicle parking

U2B - Flood Risk Assessment zones

Summary of Representations:

21 neighbours were consulted on this application.

PARISH COUNCIL — Object as the proposal would create a terracing effect and is over
development, it would be visually intrusive to neighbouring properties. Concern is also raised at
flooding issues with nearby North Weald Brook. The proposal would also constitute Garden
Grabbing.

8 HARRISON DRIVE - Object as there is insufficient amenity space provided, will remove and cut
back existing trees, the creation of a terrace would be out of keeping with the area, and as this
would result in highway safety and parking problems.

10 HARRISON DRIVE — Object as this would be out of character and ruin the appearance of the
street scene and due to insufficient parking provision.

11 HARRISON DRIVE — Object as a row of terrace properties would be out of keeping with the
area, as this would set a precedent which would create an enormous strain on the cul-de-sac, as it
would exacerbate existing parking problems, and concerned about drainage issues and potential
flood risk.

12 HARRISON DRIVE — Object due to the creation of a terrace out of keeping with the
surrounding properties, as it will result in further traffic congestion and parking problems, and due
to the impact on Wheelers Farm Gardens residents.

13 HARRISON DRIVE — Object due to the impact on the character of the area, impact on existing
trees, as this would result in further traffic and parking problems, concerned about drainage
issues, and as this is garden grabbing.

5 WHEELERS FARM GARDENS - Object due to the potential loss of trees and vegetation, due to
drainage concerns, this would be a cramped development, and due to the impact on neighbours.

PETITION SIGNED BY: 5, 6, 9, 11, 12, 13, 14, AND 15 WHEELERS FARM GARDENS - Object
to loss of privacy if any trees are removed, impact on neighbouring residents, potential flood risk,
there is no shortage of accommodation so no need for the development, and may lead to a loss of
animal habitat.

Page 124



PETITION SIGNED BY: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 10, 11 AND 12 HARRISON DRIVE - Object to the
impact on the street scene and overdevelopment of the site, parking and highway safety issues,
and as this constitutes garden grabbing.

Issues and Considerations:

The key issues in this consideration are those highlighted within the previous reasons for refusal.
These consist of:
o The level of proposed amenity space for both the proposed development and the donor
property;
¢ The impact on neighbouring residents (particularly those in Wheelers Farm Gardens);
e The visual impact on the street scene and surrounding area.

Provision of amenity space

The existing dwelling would retain 65 sq. m. of rear garden area, with the subdivided plot allowing
approximately 85 sq. m. for use by the new dwelling. The supporting text of DBE8 expects rear
gardens to have a minimum area of 20 sq. m. for each habitable room that will usually:

(i) Be at the rear of dwellings or flats;

(i) Be directly adjacent to and easily accessible from the relevant buildings;

(ii) Be of a size, shape and nature which enables reasonable use;

(iv) Have an aspect which ensures that reasonable parts receive sunlight throughout the year;

(v) Not have an excessive slope in its finished form; and

(vi) Achieve privacy on a continuing basis.

Under this guidance, both properties would require 80 sq. m. of private amenity space. Due to the
reduction in footprint of the proposed new dwelling this would now be served by a private amenity
area (which meets the six requirements of DBES8) that exceeds the expected minimum, however
the donor property would still be 15 sq. m. below this.

Notwithstanding the above, both properties have substantial front garden areas which would
compensate for that lost at the rear. Furthermore, the supporting text of DBES states that
“inevitably there will be exceptions and the Council may be prepared to relax these standards in
certain circumstances”. These circumstances include where “the size and/or disposition of a plot
does not quite facilitate what, in all other terms, would be an acceptable form of development’. As
such it is considered that, despite the donor property being 15 sq. m. below the expected level, the
increase in the level of private amenity space provided for the new dwelling and the level of
compensatory (although not private) front amenity space is considered sufficient to overcome the
previous reason for refusal.

Amenity considerations

As the proposed dwelling would not extend beyond the front or rear wall of No. 14 Harrison Drive
the dwelling does not detrimentally impact on this resident’s amenities (which is the same as
previous). As such the main concern and basis for the previous reason for refusal was the impact
on the residents of Wheelers Farm Gardens.

At present the site is screened along the northern boundary by heavy vegetation, primarily
consisting of Hawthorn trees and laurel hedging, which acts as an effective screen against loss of
privacy (particularly as Wheelers Farm Gardens have very narrow rear gardens). This revised
application has reduced the width of the proposed dwelling and therefore would retain a greater
gap between the flank wall of the house and the existing planting (and the neighbouring sites). The
Council’s Tree & Landscape Officers agree with the submitted Arboricultural Report that
demonstrates the trees and hedges on site can be safely retained during construction (a matter

Page 125



which can also be controlled/protected by condition). Therefore, with the retention of this screening
and additional planting to supplement the existing vegetation, there would be no detrimental loss
of amenity to the existing neighbours or to future occupiers of the site.

Design

Whilst the previous application proposed a dwelling wider than those existing within Harrison Drive
this revised scheme has reduced the width of the new dwelling to bring it in line with its
neighbours. Furthermore, although this development would create a row of three terrace
properties in a road of semi-detached houses, given the site’s location at the end of this small cul-
de-sac such a development would not be considered harmful to the appearance of the street
scene. The wider surrounding area consists of a mix of semi-detached, detached and terrace
houses together with maisonettes. Therefore, whilst Harrison Drive consists solely of semi-
detached dwellings, the proposed development would not be at odds with the wider character or
appearance of this area.

Other Issues

Whilst the previous planning application was only refused for the above three reasons, and all
other considerations were therefore considered acceptable, concerns have again been raised by
neighbours and the Parish Council with regards to parking provision/highway safety, loss of
existing trees, and drainage/flooding issues. These matters are addressed below.

Highways/parking

The proposed development would provide two off-street parking spaces for the new dwelling and
two spaces for No. 14 Harrison Drive. Furthermore, given the large area of hardstanding in front of
the dwellings, there would be adequate room for visitor parking when required. As such this
proposal complies with the requirements of the Essex County Council Vehicle Parking Standards.
Whilst neighbour objections have been received stating that this would exacerbate existing parking
problems, there is no justification to require more parking provision than that proposed. As such
the proposed development complies with policy ST6.

Landscaping

The submitted Arboricultural Report demonstrates that the existing trees and hedges on site can
be safely retained through construction and thereafter, which can be controlled by condition.
Further to the retention of the existing trees and hedges, additional landscaping should be sought
to supplement the existing vegetation, which can also be secured by condition.

Flood risk

The application site lies within a Flood Risk Assessment zone and concern has been raised by
neighbours and the parish council with regards to potential flood risk resulting from the
development. The Council’s Engineering, Drainage and Water Team were consulted on this
application, however they consider that the proposed development would only cause a negligible
increase in surface water runoff. As such, this proposal does not require any form of flood risk
assessment.

Conclusion:
The reduction in width of the proposed new dwelling would bring this in line with the size of the
other properties within Harrison Drive, would locate the development further away from the shared

boundary with the dwellings in Wheelers Farm Gardens, would ensure retention and protection of
the existing landscaping, and would increase the size of the private amenity space serving the

Page 126



proposed new dwelling. Whilst the parent dwelling would have 15 sq. m. less private amenity
space than expected by policy DBES, this is considered acceptable due to the provision of
generous amenity space to the front of the site and the general suitability of the site for such a
development. As such the application is recommended for approval.

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest:

Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228

or if no direct contact can be made please email: contactplanning@eppingforestdc.qgov.uk

Page 127



Epping Forest District Council

Area Planning Sub-Committee East

T e oy vy | Agenda ltem 14

wit_h thel permi_ssion of the Controller qf Her Number:

Unauthorised reproduction mfringés Grown | Application Number: | EPF/1508/11

g&pcféﬂ?r:;:d may lead to prosecution or civ Site Name: 14 Harrison Drive, North Weald
EFDC licence No.100018534 Scale of Plot: 1C/|§|/|215606JD

Page 128



	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	Area Planning Subcommittee East - members photo sheet 11-12

	3 MINUTES
	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
	East 14 Sept 2011


